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In the face of unprecedented economic challenges

what does uncommon achievement look like

At Hewitt its unrelenting client focus unmistakably

dedicated associates undeniably solid financials

and unyielding pursuit of high-quality service through

Lean operations Unambiguously



unrelenting client focus

knowing their business

listening to their challenges and seeing solutions

bringing ideas before we are asked

impacting their business and their employees
lives for the better

At Hewitt clients come first We realize that good relationship just isnt enoughwe must impact their

business in meaningful ways In 2009 we achieved our highest level of chent satisfaction in seven years

and the highest level yet in Europe Our clients hire us because they know we can help them achieve their

business results In these tough economic times many of our clients need to cut costs We help them do that

in ways that minimize disruption to their workforce As industries consolidate we assist clients to integrate

newly acquired units quickly and divest operations smoothly We help clients manage the risk of their

pension plans and advocate for legislative relief from funding requirements to help companies manage

through the recession Our legal and government affairs teams keep clients abreast of the latest regulatory

and legislative changes and our design and delivery teams help clients take the right steps to stoy in

compliance Throughout the health care reform debate we keep our clients well informed and play an active

role in Washington D.C by providing key players with the perspectives of Americas large employers and

the likely impacts of proposed changes on the employer-based health care system

And our client focus extends to our clients employees as well We design retirement solutions to improve

their financial security and retirement readiness We help clients select health plan options that meet

employees needs and contribute to improved wellness We identify work environment changes that might

prevent employee absences before they happen Hewitt has researched the barriers to improving health and

financial outcomes for diverse populations and works with clients to tailor their programs to encourage

greater participation We continually invest in new tools and technologies that make it easier for all of our

clients employees to make good enrollment decisions and to actively manage their own health and retire

ment choices Its all about helping our clients create healthy secure productive and motivated workforce

to drive their business

We remain the best company to provide the full spectrum of HR services critical to our clients success in

managing complex people issues
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unmistakably dedicated associates

more rewarding work experience

risingassociate engagement

high retention

dedicated and experienced client teams

We believe that engaged and passionate associates are the key to delivering high-quality and high-value

service to our clients We consult with clients worldwide on how to improve their employee engagement to

drive business results and we apply the same methodology in-house Associate engagement at Hewitt

improved dramatically in 2009 the third consecutive year of signThcant increase We listened to associates

and took purposeful action across the four dimensions they told us really matter talent rewards learning and

pride in Hewitt Weve expanded Hewitt University so that associate development both formal and informal

is part of the culture As engagement has risen so have retention levels Clients tell us consistently their

relationship with their Hewitt team matters the most Having committed workforce means dedicated

cohesive and experienced teams are serving our clients In fact weve welcomed back number of talented

Hewitt alumni in the last year many of whom are helping us bring new innovations to market in their areas

of expertise

Hewitt associates have unique relationship with their clients Our consultants are trusted business

advisors to their clients They make it their job to understand their clients industries and know their busi

nesses so they can bring new and relevant ideas to the table Our HR experts know how to translate complex

HR data based on the behavior of clients own employees into meaningful insights to help them get the

most out of their benefit plans And our customer service representatives understand that theyre often the

face of the client to callers They help our clients employees as they work through important life events

starting new job choosing the right health plan for their family adding dependent dealing with the loss

of loved one taking out loan or planning for their retirement
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undeniably solid financials

record-high operating profit operating margin
and earnings per share

underlying margin improvementacross the board

profit milestone in HR BPO

strong free cash flow

solid balance sheet

In the face of strong economic headwinds our financial results speak for themselves Our business model

has proved to be resihent with gains in some areas offsetting other areas hurt by the recession In 2009

we achieved record-high operating profit operating margin and earnings per share And these impressive

results were backed by an enviably solid balance sheet Looking behind the numbers our HR BPO business

improved dramatically achieving its first-ever profitable quarter What seemed almost unachievable just

few years ago is reality

In all three business segments we improved our underlying margins thanks to our ongoing focus on

streamlining operations simplifying our processes using our staff better and controlling discretionary

spending Our strong free cash flow got even stronger reflecting our finance teams tight rein on collections

as economic conditions worsened and our improved operating performance This fiscal discipline pays

off for our clients too because we have ample resources to support our investments in new and enhanced

products and services
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unyielding pursuit of high-quality service

through Lean operations

strong results from Lean program

reductions in shared costs

improved operations on many fronts

ongoing quality improvements

Weve demonstrated higher quality is key to lowering costs for us and our chents Thats the outcome ofan

ingrained Lean mind-set Three years ago we set out to run more efficient operation that could support our

growing client base The first two years focused on streamlining our cost structure to free up resources to

invest in growth But we didnt stop there We knew that the key to improving our service quality was to

apply continuous improvement principles to our most complex client processeseliminating unnecessary

steps and handoffs to reduce errors and time

Were streamlining our Benefits Outsourcing implementation process and this is allowing us to bring

new generation of satisfied clients on board sooner Were collaborating with our clients to reengineer

critical processes and achieve significant improvements in both the quality of the service and the time

to complete

Consulting picked up their pace this year taking close look at their use of resources from top to bottom

We realigned right-sized and simplified our Consulting structure to focus on what clients need most

today We reduced redundant technology and operational support costs while becoming more nimble to

support future growth To sustain our progress were investing in tools and information systems to

continuously improve our operational effectiveness
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Dear Stockholders

Im pleased to report that frscc.rl 2009 wos good yeor
for Hewitt overoil We made notable

progress ogoinst eoch ofourfour

strategic prioritieskeeping clients first creating rewording work experience growing with intention end getting leon Over the

post yeor we focused on high-quality service delivery and our client sotisfaction scores improved OLin monagers worked hord to

improve our associates work experience and we saw significant gains in engagement and reductions in turnover We continued

to invest in growth by expanding our product line and distribution channels We saw strong sales and built healthy pipeline to

carry us into next year We challenged ourselves to reduce our cost strLfcture even furtherand margins improved in all three of our

businesses As result we delivered record financial results in the face of unprecedented economic headwinds This was truly

team effort and extend my gratitude to the 23000 Hewitt associates around the world who led the way

Fisca 2009 HighUghts

Let me highlight few of our more noteworthy accomplishments overthe past year

We reduced the underlying loss in our HR BPO business by $80 million which effectively broLight us to break-even in the second

half of the fiscal year These results reflect continued stabilization in the business increased productivity and the successfLfl mutual

renegotiation of several contracts It says lot about the quality of our client relationships that without exception every HR BPO

client involved in renegotiation remains Hewitt client today

In Benefits Outsourcing we maintained revenue and expanded margins despite very challenging business environment

Our recurring revenue model proved resilientarid new client starts helped offset the employment weakness and soft project work

environment we saw during the year This team did lot of behind-the-scenes qLrahty work to further strengthen the client service

experience We have new implementation approach that has shortened the time to start new work and has increased the quality

of service out of the gate Starting relationship well is so important to building lasting partnership



We expanded our underlying Consulting margin by 70 basis points despite lower revenue and significant severance

expense Growth in parts of the business with more recurring revenuenamely Retirement and Financial Management and

Health Managementpartially offset slowdowns in Talent and Organization Consulting and Communication whose services

are more discretionary in nature We managed our staffing levels carefully reacting to reduced demand in some of these

Consulting practices We are confident that we have strong and experienced team in place to take full advantage ofan

economic recovery

We continued to evaluate overhead spend in all parts of the business and streamline where appropriate As result we

grew underlying operating income by 29% while improving our underlying operating margin by 350 basis paints Our solid

overall operating margins and earnings were accompanied by strong cash flow We improved free cash flow by $95 million with

disciplined focus on collections while also increasing our capital investments

Finally we made progress in building for the future by investing in several key growth areas

We continued to invest in our Outsourcing sales capabilities which paid off in an excellent sales year
overall Our wins

covered the Benefits spectrumdefined benefit defined contribution and health and welfarein both the large and

mid-market Our mid-market business grew nicely as we continued to expand beyond ourtraditional large client base

And our Point Solutions group had very strong sales year Were also proud of our strong renewal rate for existing client

relationships Nonetheless our revenue was flat given the severe recession

Were back in the market with new HR BPO model that is getting good reception with clients and prospects Im especially

proud that we signed new long-term contract with prestigious Fortune 100 company in addition to contract earlier

this year with global energy provider This is just the beginning of new disciplined growth story for that business based

on new model that reflects our hard-earned experience as pioneer in this space

In Consulting we acquired the remaining interest in ourformer German Consulting RFM joint venturegiving us deep

retirement and financial management expertise in one of Europes leading pension markets We also took advantage of

the downturn to restructure our Talent and Organization Consulting business to better position the practice for growth as

demand returns with an economic recovery

Looking Ahead

This year we saw further consolidations that are changing the competitive landscape We continue to feel good about our

position Increasingly Hewitt stands apart as the only company in our space that can offer the full range of HR outsourcing and

consulting services With stable and resilient business model firmly in place were placing greater emphasis on growth

You can expect us to apply the same focus disciphne and purposeful execution to our growth agenda as we have to our pursuit

of operational excellence over the last three years

Weve already taken number of steps to increase our growth rate in 2010 and beyond Were unveiling many exciting

enhancements to our core products and services in both Consulting and Outsourcing Our sales force is growing and weve

realigned our sales and account executives to be closerto the business operations they support Weve also taken afresh look

at how to best cover our sales territories to be more proactive with prospects that may not yet have even gone out to bid We

further strengthened our deep HR domain expertise by adding key talent including some former Hewitt leaders To place

more emphasis on innovation and speed-to-market weve made several internal organization changes as well These include

appointing one of our most senior leaders to new post as Chief Client Officer and another to oversee the successful launch

and incubation of new products and markets to complement an active acquisition pipeline

In fiscal 2010 and beyond we hope that organizations will once again begin to invest in their people We will be here to

help our clients make the best decisions balancing the demands of their business and the needs of their employees

Russell Fradin

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

December 2009
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Hewitt at glance
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Finoncicfl highhghts

Nc Revc Net onek Oo II Si O1FH

Net Revenues

Operating Incoi.ie Loss

Net income Loss

Diluted EOI nings Loss per Shore

Cash and Cash Equivolents and Short-Term Investments

Total Assets

Long-Term Pm tion of Debt and Capitol Lease OhI gatians

Stockholders Equity

Maiket Price of Stock

First fiscal quoiter

Second fiscal quarter

Third fiscal quarter

Fouith fiscal quarter

300L

44

265

278

6i3

925

619

860

151

313

188

18.5

541

2979

650

650

2921

143

175

1.62

595

2756

233

$1038

2789

64

116

108

449

2768

265

$1256

2832

234

135

119

218

2957

287

$1311

Hi

$3642 $22J8 $38.84 $32.17

$3365 2413 $4039 $32.48

$3190 $231 $4300 $37.32

$3695 $2792 $42.22 $3440
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Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The folio wing informotion should be reod in conjunction with our con

solidatedfinanciol stotements ond reloted notes included elsewhere in

this Annuol Report on Form 10-K In oddition to historicol informotion

this discussion and analysis may contain forward-looking statements

that involve risks uncertainties and assumptions which could cause

actual results to differ materially from managements expectations

Please see additional risks and uncertainties described previously in

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements which appears in

Part and in Item 1A Risk Factors which appears elsewhere in this

Annual Report

Weusetheterms Hewitt the Company we us andourto

refer to the business of Hewitt Associates Inc and its subsidiaries All

references to years unless otherwise noted refer to our fiscal years

which end on September30 For example reference to 2009 or fis

cal 2009 means the twelve-month period that ends September 30

2009 References to and adjustments for foreign currency translation

ore made within our discussion of results so that the financial results

can be viewed without the impact of fluctuating foreign currency

exchange rates used in reporting results in one currency U.S dollar

and helps facilitate comparative view of business results Financial

results described within this section except for share and per shore

information are stated in thousands of U.S dollars unless otherwise

noted Certain prior-period amounts hove been reclassified to conform

to the current-year presentation

Overview

Fiscal 2009 was strong year for Hewitt despite the continued

effects of the worldwide recession on both our clients and us We

grew earnings expanded operating margins and improved cash

flows We continued to successfully maintain an aggressive focus on

our overall cost structure which drove the increase in operating

income during fiscal 2009 We added new consulting and outsourc

ing services clients during the year and maintained strong balance

sheet during the recent credit crisis

Fiscal 2009 net revenues decreased 4.7% as compared to the

prior-year period Excluding third-party supplier revenues and

adjusting for the unfavorable effect of foreign currency translation

of $128.8 million and the net favorable impact of acquisitions and

divestitures of $0.9 million net revenues decreased 0.7% Lower

revenues in HR BPO and Consulting were caused by client termina

tions and liquidations and lower demand in client discretionary serv

ices respectively Fiscal 2009 reflected $20.1 million of deferred

revenues that were recognized as revenues due to the current-year

settlement of Benefits Outsourcing contract dispute while fiscal

2008 reflected benefit of $23.1 million related to the restructuring

of two HR BPO contracts Segment results are discussed in greater

detail later in this section

Fiscal 2009 operating income increased $121.3 million or

38.8% from the prior year Lower compensation costs associated

with staffing leverage and lower selling general and administrative

costs mostly due to discretionary cost management as well as

reduced operating loss in our HR BPO segment contributed to the

growth in operating income which more than offset the decline in

revenues While the impacts of foreign currency translation affected

our revenues and expenses during fiscal 2009 the impact to operat

ing income was minimal principally due to the global nature of our

operations and our hedging program refer to Note of the Consoli

dated Financial Statements for more information on derivative

instruments Consolidated results of operations are discussed in

greater detail later in this section

We continue to maintain strong balance sheet with significant

liquidity even as the broader economy endures the effects of the

credit crisis and equity market volatility Cash and cash equivalents

were $581.6 million at September 30 2009 and included invest

ments in highly-rated money market funds and similar investments

We continuously monitor the investment ratings of our counter-

parties At September 30 2009 we had available credit facilities

with domestic and foreign banks for various corporate purposes The

amount of unused credit facilities as of September 30 2009 was

approximately $222.6 million Subsequent to the fiscal year-end we

increased our available credit by $50 million when we replaced our

existing $200 million credit facility with new three-year $250 mil

lion credit facility

During fiscal 2009 we continued to repurchase our outstanding

common stock During the year we repurchased approximately 2.6

million of our outstanding shares at an average price of $28.91 for

total of $74.2 million At September 30 2009 we had approxi

mately $225.8 million remaining under our current $300.0 million

share repurchase authorization

Onjune 30 2009 we acquired the remaining shares ofourformer

joint venture BodeHewitt AG Co KG BodeHewitt one of the

leading pension and benefits consultancies in Germany We paid

50 million $70.4 million at June 30 2009 in cash in exchange for

the remaining 72.25% of outstanding shares of BodeHewitt

For further discussion of our Companys results please see our

discussion of Consolidated and Segment results in the following

section
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Hewitt Associates Inc

Consolidated Results

The following table sets forth our historical results of operations

Net Revenues

Net revenues decreased 4.7% as compared to the prior-year Exclud

ing third-party supplier revenues and adjusting for the unfavorable

effect of foreign currency translation of $128.8 million and the net

favorable impact of acquisitions and divestitures of $0.9 million net

revenues decreased 0.7% This decrease was the result of lower rev

enues in HR BPO and Consulting caused by client terminations and

liquidations and lower demand in client discretionary services

respectively Fiscal 2009 reflected $20.1 million of deferred rev

enues that were recognized as revenues due to the current-year set

tlement ofa Benefits Outsourcing contract dispute while fiscal 2008

reflected benefit of $23.1 million related to the restructuring of

two HR BPO contracts Segment results are discussed in greater

detail later in this section

Compensation and Related Expenses

Compensation and related expenses decreased $167.2 million or

8.2% The decrease is mostly due to the favorable impacts of foreign

currency translation related to global operations lower salary costs

associated with global employee base and other cost management

efforts This was partially offset by higher compensation expense

related to the impact of prior-year acquisition and higher health

care costs Fiscal 2009 reflected the recognition of $15.2 million of

deferred costs related to the current-year settlement of the previ

ously noted Benefits Outsourcing contract dispute while fiscal 2008

reflected the recognition of $17.2 million of deferred costs related to

the restructuring of two HR BPO contracts

Asset Impairment

The fiscal 2009 and 2008 impairment charges of $4.2 million and

$4.1 million respectively included the write-off of deferred set-up

costs associated with certain client contracts in addition to the

impairment of customer relationship intangible assets The fiscal

2008 impairment charges also included the write-off of capitalized

software associated with certain client contracts

Other Operating Expenses

The decrease in other operating expenses of $66.9 million or

10.7% was primarily due to lower real estate exit charges in the cur

rent period and the favorable impacts of foreign currency translation

related to global operations reduction in client service delivery

costs reflecting improved management of vendor spending and

lower infrastructure costs including decrease in rental expense

resulting from prior-year real estate exit charges also contributed to

the decrease

of Net Revenues

2009

Year Ended September 30

In thousands 2009 2008 So Change 2008

Revenues

Net revenues $3003766 $3151389 4.fl%

Reimbursements 69794 76259 8.5%

Total revenues 3073560 3227648 4.8%

Operating expenses

Compensation and related expenses 1875401 2042623 8.2% 62.4% 64.8%

Assetimpairment 4159 4117 1.0% 0.1% 0.1%

Reimbursable expenses 69794 76259 8.5% 2.3% 2.4%

Other operating expenses1 558075 624989 10.0% 18.6% 19.8%

Selling general and administrative expenses 141361 202483 3O.2% 4.8% 6.5%

Gain on sale of businesses 9379 35667 73.fl% 0.3% 1.1%

Total operating expenses 2639411 2914804 9.4% 87.9% 92.5%

Operating income 434149 312844 38.8% 14.5% 9.9%

Other expense income net

Interest expense 39979 24788 1.3% 1.3% O.8%
Interest income 7410 22023 66.4% 0.2% 0.7%

Otherincome net 8140 6365 27.9% 0.2% 0.2%

Total other expenseincome net 24429 3600 N/M 0.9% 01%

Incomebeforeincometaxes 409720 316444 29.5% 13.6% 10.0%

Provisionforincometaxes 144595 128302 12.7% 4.8% 4.0%

Net income 265125 188142 40.9% 8.8% 6.0%

Net revenues include $42776 and $40498 of third-party supplier revenues for the years ended September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively Generally the third-party

supplier arrangements are marginally profitable The related third-party supplier expenses are included in other operating expenses
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Selling General and Administrative SGA Expenses

SGA expenses decreased $61.1 million or 30.2% Fiscal 2008

included net charges related to ongoing disputes and settlements

with various clients of $24.1 million as compared to $7.8 million of

similar charges in fiscal 2009 Discretionary cost management the

favorable impacts of foreign currency
translation related to global

operations and lower amortization of intangibles also contributed to

lower SGA expenses in fiscal 2009

Gain on Sale of Businesses

In February 2009 the Company closed on the sale of the net assets

and stock relating to its Latin America HR BPO business Addition

ally in March 2009 the Company closed on the sale of the net assets

relating to its HR BPO mobility services business Both divestitures

were part of the Companys efforts to streamline its HR BPO service

offerings

The Company recorded pretax gain of $9.1 million primarily

related to the recognition of cumulative currency translation adjust

ments during the quarter ended March 31 2009 as result of the

sale of its Latin America HR BPO business The Company recorded

pretax gain of $0.3 million during the quarter ended March 31 2009

as result of the sale of its HR BPO mobility services business

On January 31 2008 the Company sold the net assets of its

Cyborg business Cyborg was acquired in 2003 and provided

licensed processed and hosted payroll software services Its opera

tions were included in the HR BPO segment The divestiture was

part of the Companys efforts to streamline its HR BPO service offer

ings The Company recorded pretax gain of $35.7 million during

the quarter ended March 31 2008 as result of the sale

Total Other Expense Income Net

Total other expense income net increased $28.0 million in fiscal

2009 and was driven by higher interest expense
and lower interest

income Higher interest expense of $15.2 million resulted from

higher average debt balances as compared to fiscal 2008 Lower

interest income of $14.6 million was primarily due to lower average

interest rates as compared to fiscal 2008

Provision for Income Taxes

The Companys consolidated effective income tax rate was 35.3%

and 40.5% far the
years

ended September 30 2009 and 2008

respectively The Company reviews its expected annual effective

income tax rates and makes changes on quarterly basis as neces

sary
based on certain factors such as changes in forecasted annual

operating income changes to the valuation allowance for net

deferred tax assets changes to actual or forecasted permanent book

to tax differences impacts from tax settlements with state federal or

foreign tax authorities or impacts from tax law changes Each quar

ter the Company identifies items which are not normal and recur

ring in nature and treats these as discrete events The tax effect of

discrete items is booked entirely in the quarter in which the discrete

event occurs Due to the volatility of these factors the Companys

consolidated effective income tax rate can vary significantly on

quarterly basis The current years effective rate was impacted by

number af significant items including the settlement of certain

federal state and foreign tax audits and the favorable tax treat

ment associated with the divestiture of our Latin America HR BPO

business The impact of these significant items was to decrease the

rate by net 4.2%
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Hewitt Associates Inc

Fiscal Years Ended September 30 2008 and 2007

%of Net Revenues

%change 2008

7.9%

10.1%

2990326 7.9%

Net Revenues

Net revenues increased 7.9% as compared to the prior-year period

Excluding third-party supplier revenues and adjusting far the favor

able effects of foreign currency translatian af $40.9 million and the

net unfavorable impact af acquisitions and divestitures of $9.5 mil

lion net revenues increased 7.4% The increase in net revenues was

driven by revenue growth across oil segments with Consulting

showing the largest increase Segment results ore discussed in

greater detail later in this section

Compensation and Related Expenses

Compensatian and related expenses increased $136.5 million or

7.2% An increase in salary costs resulted from an increase in Con

sulting activities to support demand and higher performance-based

compensation Offsetting these increases were lower salary costs

associated with global employee base and other cost management

efforts and decrease in severance expense

Goodwill and Asset Impairment

The fiscal 2008 impairment charges of $4.1 million resulted from

the write-off of deferred set-up costs and capitalized software asso

ciated with certain client contracts in addition to the impairment of

customer relationship intangible assets During fiscal 2007 the

Company evaluated certain intangible assets related to the HR BPO

and Benefits Outsourcing segments for impairment This review

resulted in non-cash impairment charges of $326.6 million irclud

ing $279.8 million of goodwill impairment and $46.8 million of

asset impairment which included capitalized software and core

technology of $32.6 million customer relationships of $6.0 million

and $7.9 million of anticipated losses on certain contracts

Year Ended September 30

thausa________ 2008 2007

Reimbursements

Total revenues

Revenues

Net revenuest $3151389 $2921076

76259

3227648

69250

Operating expenses

Compensation and related expenses 2042623 1906158

Goodwill and asset impairment 4117 326615

Reimbursable expenses 76259 69250

Other operating expenses1 624989 636698

Selling general and administrative
expenses 202483 194572

Gain on sale of business 35667

7.2%

98.7%
10.1%

1.8%
4.1%

N/A

2007

65.3%

11.2%

2.4%

1.8%

6.6%

107.3%

4.9%

64.8%

0.1%

2.4%

19.8%

6.5%

1.1%

92.5%

9.9%

Total operating expenses 2914804 3133293 7.O%

Operating income loss 312844 142967 N/M

Other income net

Interest expense 24788 20019 23.8% 0.8% 0.7%

Interest income 22023 30219 27.1% 0.7% 1.0%

Otherincome net 6365 8049 20.9% 0.2% 0.3%

Total other income net 3600 18249 8O.3% 0.1% 0.6%

Income loss before income taxes 316444 124718 N/M 10.0% 4.3%

Provision for income taxes 128302 50362 154.8% 4.0% 1.7%

Netincomeloss 188142 $175O8O N/M 6.0% 6.O%

1Net revenues include $40498 and $69842 of third-party supplier revenues for the years ended September 30 2008 and 2007 respectively Generally the thirc -party

supplier arrangements are marginally profitable The related third-party supplier expenses are included in other operating expenses
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Other Operating Expenses

The decrease in other operating expenses of $11.7 million or 1.8%

was primarily due to lower infrastructure costs including decreases

in depreciation and amortization expense mostly resulting from fis

cal 2007 impairment and real estate exit charges in addition to

reduction in third-party supplier costs of $27.8 million The decrease

was partially offset by higher real estate-related charges Fiscal

2008 and 2007 operating expenses included $44.8 million and

$29.3 million respectively of real estate-related charges primarily

due to the recognition of the fair value of lease vacancy obligations

and lease termination charges related to the exit of certain loca

tions and related acceleration of depreciation of leasehold improve

ments and equipment and other charges in those years The fiscal

2008 decrease in other operating expenses was also offset by higher

client service delivery charges net of deferrals of $8.9 million pri

marily related to the increased number of clients which were live

with ongoing services and the impact of two previously announced

contract restructu rings

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

The increase in SGA expenses af $7.9 million or 4.1% was prima

rily attributable to net charges related to ongoing disputes and set

tlements with various clients of approximately $24.1 million in fiscal

2008 Additionally $4.6 million higher allowance for doubtful

accounts contributed to the increase $15.0 million charge associ

ated with the restructuring of an HR BPO contract and $4.5 million

charge associated with the resolution of legal dispute with

vendor were both recorded in fiscal 2007 offsetting the increases

noted above

Gain on Sale of Business

On January 31 2008 the Company sold the net assets of its Cyborg

business Cyborg was acquired in 2003 and provided licensed

processed and hosted payroll software services Its operations were

included in the HR BPO segment The divestiture was part of the

Companys efforts to streamline its HR BPO service offerings The

Company recorded pretax gain of $35.7 million during the quarter

ended March 31 2008 as result of the sale

Total Other Income Net

Total other income net decreased $14.6 million in fiscal 2008

driven by lower interest income of $8.2 million due to lower average

investment balances and lower average interest rates as compared

to fiscal 2007 Higher interest expense of $4.8 million resulting

from higher average debt balances as compared to fiscal 2007 and

accelerated discount amortization related to the 2.5% convertible

senior notes also contributed to the increase

Lower other income net of $1.7 million resulted from lower

investment gains and higher gains on foreign currency transactions

In fiscal 2008 the Company recognized gains of $2.6 million related

to the sale of two equity investments In fiscal 2007 the Company

recognized pretax gain of $6.0 million related to the sale of cost

method investment

Provision for Income Taxes

The Companys consolidated effective income tax rate was 40.5%

for the year ended September 30 2008 as compared to 40.4% for

the comparable fiscal 2007 period The Company reviews its

expected annual effective income tax rates and makes changes on

quarterly basis as necessary based on certain factors such

as changes in forecasted annual operating income changes to the

valuation allowance for net deferred tax assets changes to actual or

forecasted permanent book to tax differences impacts from future

tax settlements with state federal or foreign tax authorities or

impacts from tax law changes Each quarter the Company identifies

items which are not normal and recurring in nature and treats these

as discrete events The tax effect of discrete items is booked entirely

in the quarter in which the discrete event occurs Due to the volatility

of these factors the Companys consolidated effective income tax

rote can change significantly on quarterly basis The higher effec

tive tax rate in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 was due to the

mix of income across various jurisdictions and the effect of non

recurring discrete items including return to provision adjustments

and interest on FIN 48 liabilities in fiscal 2008 The impact of these

significant items was to increase the rate by net 0.2% The fiscal

2007 tax rate was impacted by non-deductible goodwill impairment

charges
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Segment Results

The following table sets forth unaudited historical segment results for the periods presented

In thousands

Benefits Outsourcing

Segment net revenues

Segment income

Segment income as percentage of segment net revenues

HRBPO

Segment net revenues

Segment loss

Segment loss as percentage of segment net revenues

Consulting

Segment net revenues

Segment income

Segmentincome as percentage of segment net revenues

Total Company

Segment net revenuest1

Intersegment revenues

Net revenues

Reimbursements

479724

5223
1.1%

13.5%

93.7%

Benefits Outsourcing

Benefits Outsourcing net revenues were flat compared to fiscal

2008 Net revenues were also flat after adjusting for the unfavorable

effect of foreign currency translation of $17.3 million and the favor

able impact of acquisitions of $16.7 million Mid-market client

growth was offset by decrease in project work and current period

adjustments related to client service issues in prior years Fiscal

2009 reflected the benefit of $20.1 million of deferred revenues that

were recognized as revenues due to the current-year settlement of

contract dispute while fiscal 2008 reflected the benefit of $9.0 mil

lion related to the resolution of two HR BPO contract restructurings

which also impacted Benefits Outsourcing

Benefits Outsourcing operating income increased 6.0% com

pared to fiscal 2008 The increase was due to cost savings related to

lower real estate exit charges infrastructure cost management

efforts and the favorable expense impacts of foreign currency trans

lation related to global operations This was partially offset by the

impact of prior-year acquisition decreased project work current

period adjustments for client service issues in prior years and higher

health care costs Fiscal 2009 reflected benefit relating to the cur

rent-year settlement of contract dispute while fiscal 2008 reflected

benefit related to the restructuring of two HR BPO contracts which

also impacted Benefits Outsourcing

HRBPO

HR BPO net revenues decreased 13.5% Excluding third-party sup

plier revenues and adjusting for the unfavorable effect of foreign

currency translation of $19.7 million and the impact of $31.5 mil

lion of revenues generated in fiscal 2008 by divested businesses

net revenues decreased 5.6% The HR BPO revenue decrease was

primarily due to client terminations and liquidations This was offset

by an increase in the number of clients going live with contract

services over the last twelve months and certain contractual

adjustments Also contributing to the decrease was the prior-year

benefit of $14.1 million related to the resolution of two contract

restru ctu rings

Year Ended September 30

2009 2008 %Change

$1549991

387168

25.0%

0.O%
6.0%

$1550110

365336

23.6%

554854

83277
15.0%

$1094323 7.5%

143217 0.4%

13.1%

$3199287 4.9%

47898 21.2%

3151389 4.7%

76259 8.5%

4.8%

$1011781

143769

14.2%

$3041496

37730

3003766

69794

Total revenues $3073560 $3227648

Segmentincome 525714 425276 23.6%

Unallocated shared service costs 91565 112432 18.6%

Operating income 434149 312844 38.8%

1HR BPU net revenues include $42776 and $40498 of third-party supplier revenues far the year ended September 30 2009 and 2008

supplier arrangements are marginally profitable The related third-party supplier expenses are included in other operating expenses

respectively Generally the third-party
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HR BPO operating loss decreased 93.7% compared to fiscal

2008 The prior-year period included gain on the sale of Cyborg of

$35.7 million while the current-year period included gains on the

sale of the net assets of the HR BPO Latin America and mobility

services businesses of $9.1 million and $0.3 million respectively

Contributing to the decrease in segment loss were lower costs

associated with staffing leverage and infrastructure cost manage

ment efforts lower real estate exit charges and lower amortization

of intangibles The prior-year period also included net charges of

$13.0 million related to the restructuring of two HR BPO contracts

and charges of $5.7 million related to disputes and settlements with

various clients

Consulting

Consulting net revenues decreased 7.5% Adjusting for the unfavor

able effect of foreign currency
translation of $91.8 million and the

impact of acquisitions of $15.8 million net revenues decreased

0.6% The revenue decrease was due to lower revenues from Talent

and Organization Consulting services reflecting declines across all

regions and Communication services in North America both result

of continued adverse economic environment This was partially

offset by growth related to Retirement and Financial Management

services in Europe and North America reflecting demand related

to economic volatility and modest growth in Health Management

consulting

Consulting operating income increased 0.4% compared to fiscal

2008 The increase in segment income was due to discretionary

expense management as well as lower performance-based compen

sation This was partially offset by the unfavorable impacts of

foreign currency translation related to global operations and higher

severance expenses

Unallocated Shared Service Costs

Unallocated shared service costs are global expenses that are

incurred on behalf of the entire Company and are nat specific to

business segment These costs include finance legal human

resources management and corporate relations and other related

costs

Unallocated costs decreased $20.9 million or 18.6% The

decrease was primarily due to lower real estate exit charges and

lower professional services fees
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Fiscal Years Ended September 30 2008 and 2007

The following table sets forth unaudited historical segment results for the periods presented

In thousands

Benefits Outsourcing

Segment net revenues

Segment income

Segment income as percentage of segment net revenues

HRBPO

Segment net revenues

Segment loss

Segment loss as percentage of segment net revenues

Consulting

Segment net revenues

Segment income

Segmentincome as percentage of segment net revenues

Year Ended September 30

Total Company

Segment net revenues1 $3199287 $2960644

Intersegment revenues 47898 39568
8.1%

21.1%

7.9%

10.1%

7.9%

Net revenues 3151389 2921076

Reimbursements 76259 69250

Total revenues $3227648 $2990326

Segment income loss 425276 44217 N/M

Unallocated shared service costs 112432 98750 13.9%

Operating income loss 312844 142967 N/M

Benefits Outsourcing

Benefits Outsourcing net revenues increased 5.1% Adjusting for the

favorable impact of foreign currency translation of $4.5 million and

acquisitions of $16.7 million net revenues increased 3.7% The

increase in revenues was primarily due to an increase in clients

going live with contract services over fiscal 2008 increased project

work and the benefit of $9.0 million of revenue related to the resolu

tion of two contract restructurings partially offset by lost clients

Benefits Outsourcing operating income increased 20.2% com

pared to fiscal 2007 Growth was mostly due to an increase from fis

cal 2007 in higher margin project work decrease in compensation

expense associated with lower severance and lower salary costs

related to global employee base and other infrastructure cost

management efforts This growth was partially offset by higher con

tractor costs and operating expense related to certain large com

plex clients that went live with ongoing services as well as higher

performance-based compensation and net litigation costs Fiscal

2007 results also reflected $10.1 million of additional loss reserves

for anticipated losses on certain European contracts and $4.5 mil

lion resulting from the resolution of legal dispute with vendor

FIR BPO

HR BPO net revenues increased 2.9% Excluding third-party rev

enues and adjusting for the favorable impact of foreign currency

translation of $10.5 million and the impact of $21.1 million from the

additional revenues generated by Cyborg in the prior fiscal year net

revenues increased 12.4% The increase was primarily related to an

increase in the number of clients which went live with contract serv

ices over fiscal 2008 and growth in revenue from existing clients

including an increase in project work and transactional volumes

This was partially offset by planned service reductions to certain cur

rent and former clients Also contributing to the increase was the

benefit of $14.1 million related to the resolution of two contract

rest ructu rings

HR BPO operating loss decreased 83.1% compared to fiscal

2007 The decrease in the loss was due to lower impairment charges

recorded in fiscal 2008 and improvements in operating perform

ance Fiscal 2007 results reflected charges of $279.8 million for

goodwill impairment and $30.4 million for intangible asset impair

ment related to the impairment of capitalized software core tech

nology intangible assets and customer relationship intangibles The

2008 2007 %change

$1550110 $1475326 5.1%

365336 303984 20.2%

23.6% 20.6%

554854 539452 2.9%

83277 492193 83.1%

15.0% 91.2%

$1094323 945866 15.7%

143217 143992 0.5%
13.1% 15.2%

BPO net revenues include $40498 and $69842 of third-party supplier revenues for the year ended September 30 2008 and 2007 respectively Generally the third-party

supplier arrangements are marginally profitable The related third-party supplier expenses are included in other operating expenses
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decrease in the loss was also due to lower operating expense in fis

cal 2008 which included gain on the sale of Cyborg of $35.7 mil

lion The segment loss also improved due to staffing leverage

infrastructure cost management efforts and increased direct rev

enue Fiscal 2008 included net charges of $12.8 million related to

the previously announced restructurings of two HR BPO contracts as

compared to $15.0 million of charges recorded in fiscal 2007

related to the restructuring of client contract Fiscal 2008 also

included net charges related to ongoing disputes and settlements

with various clients of $4.1 million

Consulting

Consulting net revenues increased 15.7% Adjusting for the favor

able effects of foreign currency
translation of $26.0 million and

acquisitions of $13.9 million net revenues increased 11.5% The

majority of this growth resulted from increased demand in North

America and Europe for Retirement and Financial Management serv

ices driven by funding legislation and ongoing pension accounting

changes Also contributing to the revenue growth was increased

demand for Talent and Organization Consulting in the U.S the

Asia-Pacific region and Europe as well as demand for Health

Management consulting in the U.S

Consulting operating income decreased 0.5% compared to fis

cal 2007 The decrease was mostly due to higher compensation

expense some of which related to investments for practice growth

driven by increased salaries performance-based compensation

benefits and severance Fiscal 2008 included $12.6 million in sever

ance charges related to workforce restructuring Offsetting the

decrease was revenue growth

Unallocated Shared Service Costs

Unallocated shared service costs are global expenses that are

incurred on behalf of the entire Company and are not specific to

business segment These costs include finance legal human

resources management and corporate relations and other related

costs

Unallocated costs increased $13.7 million or 13.9% primarily

due to charges related to the real estate restructurings higher per

formance-based compensation expenses and legal fees in fiscal

2008 partially offset by lower costs due to severance expense

incurred in fiscal 2007 related to restructuring actions and lower

outside consulting costs

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
issued Accounting Standards Codification ASC 105 Generally

AcceptedAccounting Principles formerly SFAS No 168 The FASB

Accounting Standards Codification TM and the Hierarchy of Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles replacement of FASB Statement No

162 Effective for reporting periods ending after September 15

2009 Hewitts fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 this pronouncement

established the FASB ASC as the single source of authoritative non

governmental U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles U.S
GAAP The Company adopted this statement as of September 30

2009 The adoption of this statement did not have material effect

on the financial statements or related disclosures However the dis

closures and other items have been updated to include appropriate

references to the FASB ASC

Conforming with U.S GAAP requires us to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements and this Annual Report The

process of determining significant estimates is fact specific and

takes into account factors such as historical experience known

facts current and expected economic conditions and in some cases

actuarial and financial valuation techniques We periodically re

evaluate these significant factors and make adjustments when facts

and circumstances change however actual results may differfrom

estimates Certain of our accounting policies require higher degrees

of judgment than others in their application These include certain

aspects of accounting for revenue recognition and client contract

loss reserves deferred contract costs and revenues performance-

based compensation accounts receivable and unbilled work in

process goodwill and other intangible assets retirement plans

income taxes share-based compensation and investments

Revenue Recognition

Revenues include fees generated from outsourcing contracts and

from consulting services provided to our clients Outsourcing con

tract terms typically range from three to five years for Benefits Out-

sourcing contracts and five to ten years for HR BPO controcts while

Consulting arrangements are generally short-term in nature

In connection with FASB ASC 605-25 Revenue RecognitionMulti

ple-ElementArrangements FASB ASC 605-25 we have contracts

with multiple elements primarily in our Benefits Outsourcing and HR

BPO segments Multiple-element arrangements are assessed to

determine whether they can be separated into more than one unit of

accounting FASB ASC 605-25 establishes the following criteria all

of which must be met in order fora deliverable to qualify as sepa

rate unit of accounting

The delivered items have value to the client on stand-alone

basis

There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the

undelivered items and

If the arrangement includes general right of return relative to

the delivered items delivery or performance of the undelivered

items is considered probable and substantially in the control of

the Company

If these criteria are not met deliverables included in an arrangement

are accounted for as single unit of accounting and revenue is

deferred until the period in which the final deliverable is provided or

predominant service level has been attained If there is objective

and reliable evidence of fair value for all units of accounting in an

arrangement the arrangement consideration is allocated to the sep

arate units of accounting based on each units relative fair value

Revenue is then recognized using proportional-performance

method such as recognizing revenue based on transactional serv

ices delivered or on straight-line basis as adjusted primarily for

volume changes as appropriate
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Refer to the New Accounting PronouncementsOther section

within Note of the notes to the consolidated financial statements

for recent updates to the authoritative accounting guidance relating

to revenue recognition for multiple-element arrangements which the

Company expects to adopt in fiscal 2010

The Company provides consulting services to its clients either on

time-and-material or on fixed-fee basis On fixed-fee engage

ments revenues are recognized either as services are provided

using proportional-performance method which utilizes estimates

of overall profitability and stages of project completion or at the

completion of the project based on the facts and circumstances of

the client arrangement

Contract losses on outsourcing or consulting arrangements are

recognized in the period in which the loss becomes probable and the

amount of the loss is reasonably estimable Contract losses are

determined to be the amount by which the estimated direct costs

including any remaining deferred contract costs exceed the esti

mated total revenues that will be generated by the contract When

loss is identified it is first recorded as on impairment of deferred

contract costs related to the specific contract if applicable with the

remaining amount recorded as loss reserve Estimates are moni

tored during the term of the contract and any changes to the esti

mates are recorded in the period in which the change is identified

and may result in adjustments to the loss reserve

Deferred Contract Costs and Deferred Contract Revenues

For long-term outsourcing service agreements implementation

efforts are often necessary to set up clients and their human

resource or benefit programs on the Companys systems and operat

ing processes For outsourcing services sold separately or accounted

for as separate unit of accounting specific incremental and direct

costs of implementation incurred prior to the services going live are

deferred and amortized over the period the related ongoing services

revenue is recognized Such costs may include internal and external

casts for coding or customizing systems costs for conversion of

client data and costs to negotiate contract terms For outsourcing

services that are accounted for as combined unit of accounting

specific incremental and direct costs of implementation as well as

ongoing service delivery costs incurred prior to the commencement

of revenue recognition are deferred and amortized over the remain

ing contract services period Implementation fees are also generally

received from clients either up-front or over the ongoing services

period as component of the fee per participant Lump sum imple

mentation fees received from client are initially deferred and then

recognized as revenue evenly over the contract ongoing services

period If client terminates an outsourcing services arrangement

prior to the end of the contract loss on the contract may be

recorded if necessary and any remaining deferred implementation

revenues and costs would then be recognized into earnings gener

ally overthe remaining service period through the termination date

Performance-Based Compensation

Our compensation program includes performance-based compo

nent that is determined by management subject to an annual review

by the Compensation and Leadership Committee of the Board of

Directors Performance-based compensation is discretionary and is

based on individual team and total Company performance Perform

ance-based compensation is paid once per fiscal year after our

annual operating results are finalized The amount of expense for

performance-based compensation recognized at interim reporting

dates involves judgment is based on annual results as compared to

internal targets and takes into account other factors including

industry trends and the general economic environment Annual per

formance-based compensation levels may vary from current expec

tations as result of changes in the actual performance of the

Company team or individual Accrued amounts are subject to

change in future periods if actual performance varies from perform

ance levels anticipated in priorinterim periods

Client Receivables and Unbilled Work In Process

We periodically evaluate the collectibility of our client receivables

and unbilled work in process based on combination of factors In

circumstances where we become aware of specific clients diffi

culty in meeting its financial obligations to us e.g bankruptcy we

record an allowance for doubtful accounts to reduce the client

receivable or unbilled work in process to what we reasonably believe

will be collected For all other clients we recognize an allowance for

doubtful accounts based on past write-off history and the length of

time the receivables are post due or unbilled work in process is not

billed Facts and circumstances may change which would require us

to alter our estimates of the collectibility of client receivables and

unbilled work in process key factor mitigating this risk is our

diverse client base For the years ended September 30 2009 2008

and 2007 no single client accounted for more than 10% ofourtotal

revenues

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In applying the purchase method of accounting for business combi

nations amounts assigned to identifiable assets and liabilities

acquired are based on estimated fair values as of the date of the

acquisitions with the remainder recorded as goodwill Estimates of

fair value are based primarily upon future cash flow projections for

the acquired businesses and net assets discounted to present value

using risk-adjusted discount rate These estimates are generally

made in consultation with third-party valuation specialist We

evaluate our goodwilifor impairment annually and whenever indica

tars of impairment exist The evaluation is based upon comparison

of the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to which the goodwill

has been assigned to the sum of the carrying value of the assets and

liabilities for that reporting unit The fair values used in this evalua

tion are estimated based upon discounted future cash flow projec

tions for the reporting unit Our estimate of future cash flows is

based on our experience knowledge and typically third-party advice

or market data However these estimates can be affected by other

factors and economic conditions that can be difficult to predict

Intangible assets are initially valued at fair value using generally

accepted valuation methods appropriate for the type of intangible

asset Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their
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estimated useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if indicators

of impairment arise The evaluation of impairment is based upon

comparison of the carrying amount of the intangible asset to the

estimated future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be gener

ated by the asset If estimated future undiscounted net cash flows

are less than the carrying amount of the asset the asset is consid

ered impaired The impairment expense is determined by comparing

the estimated fair value of the intangible asset to its carrying value

with any shortfall from fair value recognized as an expense in the

current period

Retirement Plans

We provide pension benefits to certain of our employees outside of

North America and other postretirement benefits to certain of our

employees in North America The valuation of the funded status and

net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit costs are cal

culated using actuarial assumptions which are reviewed annually

The assumptions include rates of increases in employee compensa

tion interest rates used to discount benefit obligations the long-

term rate of return on plan assets anticipated future health care

costs and other assumptions involving demographic factors such as

retirement mortality and turnover The selection of assumptions is

based on both short-term and long-term historical trends and known

economic and market conditions at the time of the valuation Actual

results in the future could differfrom expected results Please referto

Nate 17 for more information on our assumptions The most critical

assumptions pertain to the plans covering employees outside North

America as these plans are the most significant to our consolidated

financial statements

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S and numerous foreign

jurisdictions Significant judgment is required in determining the

worldwide income tax provision In the ordinary course of global

business there are many transactions and calculations where the

ultimate tax outcome is uncertain Some of these uncertainties arise

as consequence of revenue sharing and cost reimbursement

arrangements among related entities the process of identifying

items of revenue and expense that qualify for preferential tax treat

ment and segregation of foreign and domestic income and expense

to avoid double taxation To the extent that the final tax outcome of

these matters is different from the amounts that were initially

recorded such differences will impact the income tax provision in

the period in which such determination is made We record valua

tion allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount of

future tax benefit that is more-likely-than-nat to be realized While

we have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and

feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valua

tion allowance there is no assurance that the valuation allowance

will not need to be increased to cover additional deferred tax assets

that may not be realizable Any increase in the valuation allowance

could have material adverse impact on our income tax provision

and net income in the period in which such determination is made

Financial statement recognition and measurement of tax posi

tions taken or expected to be taken in tax return requires achieving

more-likely-than-not threshold The Company records liability for

the difference between the benefit recognized and measured pur

suant to the provisions included in FASB ASC 740 and the tax posi

tion taken or expected to be taken on our tax return To the extent

that our assessment of such tax positions changes the change in

estimate is recorded in the period in which the determination is

made The consolidated tax provision and related accruals include

the impact of such reasonably estimable losses and related interest

and penalties as deemed appropriate

Share-Based Compensation

Our employees and directors may receive awards of nonqualified

stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted

stock units performance shares performance share units and cash-

based awards and employees can also receive incentive stock

options

Restricted stock awards including restricted stack and restricted

stock units are measured using the fair market value of the stock as

of the grant date The Company recognizes compensation expense

net of estimated forfeitures on straight-line basis over the vesting

period Compensation cost of all share-based awards with perform

ance conditions is recognized on straight-line basis if cliff vesting

or on an accelerated-attribution basis if graded vesting over the

requisite service period orthe implicit service period ifit is probable

that the performance conditions will be met Estimated forfeitures

are reviewed periodically and changes to the estimated forfeiture

rate are adjusted through current period earnings Employer payroll

taxes are also recorded as expense aver the vesting period The

remaining unvested shares are subject to forfeiture and restrictions

on sale or transfer generally forfour years from the grant date

The Company also grants nanqualified stock options at an exer

cise price equal to the fair market value of the Companys stack on

the grant date The Company applies the Black-Scholes valuation

method to compute the estimated fair value of the stock options and

recognizes compensation expense net of estimated forfeitures on

straight-line basis so that the award is fully expensed at the vesting

date Generally stock options vest 25 percent on each anniversary

of the grant date are fully vested four years from the grant date and

have term often years

The Company uses the simplified method defined in SEC Staff

Accounting Bulletin SAB No 107 to determine the expected life

assumption for all of its options The Company continues to use the

simplified method as permitted by SAB No 110 as it does not

believe that it has sufficient historical exercise data to provide

reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected life due to the

limited time its equity shares have been publicly traded

Investments

Short-term and long-term investments include marketable debt

securities that are classified as available-for-sale or trading and

recorded at fair value Marketable debt securities include auction
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rate securities ARS which generally have long-term nominal

maturities that exceed one year with interest rates that reset period

ically in scheduled auctions generally every 735 days Unrealized

gains or losses are reported as component of accumulated other

comprehensive income loss to the extent they are considered tem

porary Realized gains or losses and other than temporary losses are

reported in other income expense net on the consolidated state

ments of operations

Refer to Note of the consolidated financial statements for more

information related to our auction rate securities

New Accounting Pronouncements

The information required by this Item is provided in Note of the

notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in Item

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically funded our growth and working capital requirements with internally generated funds credit facilities and term notes

We believe we have broad access to the capital markets

Cash and cash equivalents were $581.6 million $541.5 million and

$378.7 million as of September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 respec

tively The Company intends to fund working capital requirements

principal and interest payments on the Companys debt potential

acquisitions and other liabilities with cash provided by operations

and cash on hand supplemented by short-term and long-term

borrowings under existing credit facilities

Operating Activities

The Companys cash provided by operating activities increased in

fiscal 2009 by $105.1 million from the prior year This increase

reflected improved receivables collections and stronger operating

performance partially offset by lower outsourcing net deferrals and

higher performance-based compensation related to fiscal 2008

performance

The Companys cash provided by operating activities decreased

in fiscal 2008 by $107.3 million from fiscal 2007 The Company

faced increasing working capital requirements for client receivables

and unbilled work in process higher tax payments and higher per

formance-based compensation paid in fiscal 2008 for fiscal 2007

performance These factors more than offset the increase in the

Companys net income net of non-cash gains and charges and

higher deferred contract costs that provided more operating cash in

fiscal 2007

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities increased $60.4 million in fiscal

2009 which reflected lower net proceeds from the sale of invest

ments in the current year The Company used less cash to pay for

acquisitions and received less cash for the sale of businesses in fis

cal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 The Company also used more

cash in the current year in investing activities primarily due to

an increase in capital expenditures and investment in software

development

Cash used in investing activities increased $90.3 million in fiscal

2008 compared to fiscal 2007 The primary causes of this change

were increases in capital expenditures and additions to capitalized

software along with an increase in cash used for the Companys

three acquisitions in fiscal year 2008 The cash proceeds received

from the sale of the Cyborg business partially offset these increases

Net sales of investments also provided slightly less cash in fiscal

2008

Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities increased $169.1 million in fiscal

2009 Although the Company repurchased more of its shares in the

prior year the Company also received $707.1 million more cash in

the prior year related to its long-term debt offering and short-term

borrowings This resulted in more cash used in financing activities in

fiscal 2009 The Company repurchased total of $74.2 million of its

outstanding shares in fiscal 2009 as compared to $566.4 million in

fiscal 2008 The Company also used less cash to make debt repay

ments in fiscal 2009

Cash used in financing activities decreased $141.4 million in fis

cal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 as the proceeds from the Com

panys long-term debt offering more than offset the increased use of

cash to repurchase Hewitts common stock The Company repur

chased approximately 15.1 million of its outstanding shares at an

Summary of Cash Flows

In thousands 2009

Cash provided by operating activities 432998 327902

Cash used in investing activities 183266 122828

Cash used in financing activities 202277 33152
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 7307 9171

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 40148 162751

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 541494 378743

Year Ended September 30

2008

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2007

435230

32502
174579

11666

239815

138928

378743581642 541494
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average price af $37.54 for total of approximately $566.4 million

during fiscal 2008 Net payments on the Companys short-term debt

holdings also used more cash in fiscal 2008

We believe the cash on hand together with funds from operations

other current assets and existing credit facilities will satisfy our

expected working capital contractual obligations planned capitol

expenditures and investment requirements far the foreseeable future

At September 30 2009 the Company had available credit facili

ties with domestic and foreign banks for various corporate purposes

The amount of unused credit facilities as of September 30 2009 was

approximately $222.6 million Subsequent to the fiscal year-end

the Company increased its available credit by $50 million when it

replaced an existing $200 million credit facility with new three-

year $250 million credit facility Additional information on the

Companys borrowings and available credit is included in Note 11

and Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

Contractual Obligations

Significant ongoing commitments consist primarily of leases debt purchase commitments and other long-term liabilities The following

table shows the minimum payments required under existing agreements that have initial or remaining non-cancelable terms in excess of one

year as of September 30 2009

Total

571

$1581 $220

Payments Due in Fiscal Year

2010 201 12012 20132010 Thereafter

$90 $158 $132 $191

17 29 27 30

44 274 230

58 42 25

102 316 255

$331 $501 $529

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any obligations that meet the definition of an off-

balance sheet arrangement or that are reasonably likely to have

material effect on our consolidated financial statements

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk primarily from changes in foreign cur

rency exchange rates and interest rates In December 2007 we initi

ated foreign currency risk management program involving the

uses of financial derivatives and in August 2008 we initiated debt

risk management program involving interest rate swaps We do not

hold or issue derivative financial instruments fortrading purposes At

September 30 2009 we were party to hedging transactions includ

ing the use of derivative financial instruments as discussed below

In millions

Operating leases1

Capital leases

Principal

Interest

Debt

Principal

Interest

82

21

12

103

21 22

Purchase commitments4

Other long-term obligotions

Total contractual obligations

573 25

156 31

27

729 56

83

95

47

10

25

17

10

16 52

wWe have various third-party operating leases for office space furniture and equipment such as copiers servers and disk drives with terms ranging from one to twenty years

Refer to Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on operating leases

nWe have two buildings and various telecommunications equipment under capitol lease which are payable over various terms and are secured by the related property and

equipment Referto Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on capitol leases

nThe amounts for lang-term debt assume that the respective debt instruments will be outstanding until their scheduled maturity dates The amounts include interest on both

fixed ond variable interest rate debt The current rate as of September 30 2009 is assumed forthe variable rate debt forthe entire term See Note 11 and Note 12 to the consol

idated financial statements for additional information regarding our debt

Purchase commitments include among other things telecommunication usage sciftware licenses consulting services and insurance coverage obligations as well another

obligations in the ordinary course of business that we cannot cancel or where we would be required to pay termination fee in the event of cancellation

nother long-term obligations consist primarily of payments for pension plans postretirement benefit plans and other long-term obligations Other long-term obligations do not

include income taxes payable or long-term income taxes payable for uncertain tax positions We are unable to reasonably estimate the timing of future payments related to

uncertain tax positions Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on uncertain tax positions
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Hewitt Associates Inc

Foreign Exchange Risk

For the year ended September 30 2009 revenues from U.S oper

ations as percent of total revenues were approximately 78%

Operating in international markets means that we are exposed to

fluctuations in foreign exchange rates Approximately 10% and 5%

of our net revenues for the year ended September 30 2009 were

from the United Kingdom and Canada respectively Changes in

these foreign exchange rates can have significant impact on

our translated international results of operations in U.S dollars

10% change in the average exchange rate for the British pound

sterling for the year ended September 30 2009 would have

impacted our annual revenue and operating income by approxi

mately $31.2 million and $2.7 million respectively 10% change

in the average exchange rate for the Canadian dollar for the year

ended September 30 2009 would have impacted our annual rev

enue and operating income by approximately $15.2 million and

$2.2 million respectively

The Company has substantial operation in India forthe develop

ment and deployment of technology solutions as well as for client

and business support activities In December 2007 the Company

initiated foreign currency risk management program involving the

use of foreign currency
derivatives related to exposures in fluctua

tions in the Indian rupee and expects to hedge up to 75% of future

exposures As of September 30 2009 the Company was party to

foreign currency
derivative instruments related to exposures to the

Indian rupee
for approximately 66% of forecasted transactions of

approximately $136.6 million over the next 15 months 10%

change in the exchange rate on the related exposure would result in

an increase or decrease in related expenses of approximately $13.7

million Consistent with the use of the derivatives to offset the effect

of exchange rate fluctuations such increases or decreases in

expenses would be offset by corresponding gains or losses respec

tively of approximately $9.1 million an settlement of the derivative

instruments

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk primarily through our portfolio

of cash and cash equivalents short-term and long-term investments

and variable interest rate debt

Our portfolio of cash and cash equivalents is designed for safety

of principal and liquidity We invest in U.S treasuries and agencies

AAA rated money market funds Al/Pi rated commercial paper and

bank/term deposits and regularly monitor the investment ratings

The investments are subject to inherent interest rate risk as invest

ments mature and are reinvested at current market interest rates

Our portfolio earned interest at an average rate of 0.8% during the

year ended September 30 2009 one percentage point change

would have impacted our interest income by approximately $5.1

million for the year ended September 30 2009

Our short- and lang-term investments consist of auction rate secu

rities ARS which are comprised of federally insured student

loan-backed securities These securities were valued using dis

counted cash flaw model based on assumptions including current

interest yields and discount rate commensurate with the expected

holding period one percentage paint change on the interest

income yields would impact the fair value of the ARS holdings by

approximately $4.0 million one percentage paint change in the

discount rate used for valuing the ARS holdings would impact the

fair value by approximately $2.6 million

Our short-term variable rate debt consists of our unsecured lines

of credit Our variable interest rate debt had an effective interest

rate of 2.6% during the year ended September 30 2009 one per

centage paint change would have impacted our interest expense

related to all outstanding variable rate debt by approximately $3.1

million for the year ended September 30 2009

On August 2008 the Company entered into long-term loan

agreement that provides for senior unsecured term loan in the

amount of $270 million the Term Loan The Term Loan initially

bears interest at margin of 150 basis points over LIBOR which will

change depending on the Companys leverage ratio The Term Loan

matures on August 2013 without amortization The Company is

exposed to interest rate risk from this lang-term variable rate debt

The Company entered into interest rate swaps to partially convert

this variable rate exposure into fixed rate As of March 31 2009 the

Company had swapped $270 million of the Term Loan for the first

three years $185 million for the fourth year and $100 million for the

fifth year Only the variable LIBOR component of the Term Loan debt

was swapped to fixed rate The applicable fixed rate on the Term

Loan is 4.68% As of September 30 2009 these hedges are still in

place one percentage point change in LIBOR would increase or

decrease our interest expense related to the Term Loan by approxi

mately $2.7 million over full year Consistent with the use of the

derivatives to offset the effect of interest rate fluctuations such

increases or decreases in interest rate expenses would be offset by

corresponding gains or losses respectively of approximately $2.7

million on settlement of the derivative instruments

27



Managements Assessment of Internal Control Hewitt Associates Inc

over Financial Reporting

The financial statements were prepared by management which is

responsible for their integrity and objectivity and for establishing

and maintaining adequate internal controls overfinancial reporting

The Companys internal control over financial reporting is

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account

ing principles The Companys internal control over financial report

ing includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable

detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispo

sitions of the assets of the Company

ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management

and directors of the Company and

iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of

the Companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal

control including the possibility of human error and the circumvention

or overriding of controls Accordingly even effective internal controls

can provide only reasonable assurances with respect to financial

statement preparation Further because of changes in conditions

the effectiveness of internal controls may vary over time

Management assessed the design and effectiveness of the Com

panys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30

2009 In making this assessment management used the criteria set

forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread-

way Commission COSO in Internal ControlIntegrated Frame

work Based on managements assessment using those criteria as of

September 30 2009 management believes that the Companys

internal controls over financial reporting are effective

Ernst Young LLP independent registered public accounting

firm has audited the financial statements of the Company for the fis

cal years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 and the Com

panys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30

2009 Their reports are presented on the following pages The inde

pendent registered public accountants and internal auditors advise

management of the results of their audits and make recommenda

tions to improve the system of internal controls Management evalu

ates the audit recommendations and takes appropriate action

HEWITT ASSOCIATES INC
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Hewitt Associates Inc

on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Hewitt Associates Inc

We have audited Hewitt Associates Inc.s the Company internal

control over financial reporting as of September 30 2009 based on

criteria esta blished in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission the COSO criteria Hewitt Associates Inc.s manage

ment is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the accompany

ing report on Managements Assessment of Internal Control over

Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea

sonable assurance about whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effective

ness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing

such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum

stances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for

our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account

ing principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the main

tenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the com

pany provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of

the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect

on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods ore subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Hewitt Associates Inc maintained in all material

respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

September 30 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hewitt

Associates Inc as of September 30 2009 and 2008 and for each of

the three years in the period ended September 30 2009 and our

report dated November 10 2009 expressed on unqualified opinion

thereon

Chicago Illinois

November 10 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Hewitt Associates Inc

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Hewitt Associates Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of

Hewitt Associates Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of Sep
tember 30 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated state

ments of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended September 30 2009 These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys man

agement Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these finan

cial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea

sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free

of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan

cial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present

fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial position of

the Company as of September 30 2009 and 2008 and the consoli

dated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended September 30 2009 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles

As disclosed in Note in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements effective October 2007 the Company adopted Financial

Accounting Standard Board FASB Interpretation No 48Accounting

for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement

No 109 codified primarily in FASB ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes

and EITF 06-2 Accounting forSabbatical Leave and Other Similar Ben

efits Pursuant to FASB Statement No 43 Accounting for Compensated

Absences codified primarily in FASB ASC Topic 10-20 Defined

Benef it PlansGeneral As disclosed in Note in the notes to the con

solidated financial statements effective September 30 2007 the

Company adopted the recognition and disclosure requirements of

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 158

Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postre

tirement Plansan amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 106

and 132R codified primarily in FASB ASC Topic 715-20 Defined

Benefit PlansGeneral

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Hewitt

Associates Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of Sep
tember 30 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated

November 10 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

ot47LLP

Chicago Illinois

November 10 2009
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Consolidated Balance Sheets Hewitt Associates Inc

September 30 September 30
2009 2008In thousands except for shore and per share amounts

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 581642 541494

Short-term investments 60994

Client receivables and unbilled work in process less allowances

of $14381 and $18029 at September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively 527272 655543

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 169533 129529

Funds held for clients 131801 102518

Short-term deferred contract costs net 89919 83444

Deferred income taxes net 34119 34104

Total current assets 1595280 1546632

Non-Current Assets

Deferred contract costs less current portion 254905 287060

Property and equipment net 384254 385885

Other intangible assets net 191479 206822

Goodwill 412745 364141

Long-term investments 54442 124530

Other non-current assets net 31535 63762

Total non-current assets 1329360 1432200

Total Assets $2924640 $2978832

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 20790 15880

Accrued expenses 164724 239521

Funds held for clients 131801 102518

Advanced billings to clients 137447 158238

Accrued compensation and benefits 393463 403611

Short-term deferred contract revenues net 61356 52733

Short-term debt 17602

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 36282 133002

Total current liabilities 945863 1123105

Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred contract revenues less current portion 192056 237648

Debt and capital lease obligations less current portion 618561 650182

Other non-current liabilities 223835 240637

Deferred income taxes net
______________________

84023 77058

Total non-current liabilities 1118475 1205525

Total Liabilities $2064338 $2328630

Stockholders Equity

Class common stock par value $0.01 per share 750000000 shares authorized

132844269 and 130390880 issued 93535270 and 94227120 shares outstanding

as of September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively 1328 1304

Additional paid-in capital 1662687 1579077

Cost of common stock in treasury 39308999 and 36163760 shares of Class common stock

as September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively 1277815 1183427
Retained earnings 469777 206558

Accumulated other comprehensive income net 4325 46690

Total stockholders equity
-____________________________________

860302 650202

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity 2924640 $2978832

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Operations Hewitt Associates Inc

Year Ended September 30

In thousands except for share and per
share amounts 2009 2008 2007

Revenues

Revenues before reimbursements net revenues $3003766 $3151389 $2921076

Reimburse me nts 69794 76259 69250

Total revenues 3073560 3227648 2990326

Operating expenses

Compensation and related expenses 1875401 2042623 1906158

Goodwill and asset impairment 4159 4117 326615

Reimbursable expenses 69794 76259 69250

Other operating expenses 558075 624989 636698

Selling general and administrative expenses 141361 202483 194572

Gain on sale of businesses 9379 35667

Total operating expenses 2639411 2914804 3133293

Operating income loss 434149 312844 142967

Other expense income net

Interest expense 39979 24788 20019
Interest income 7410 22023 30219

Other income net 8140 6365 8049

Total other expense income net 24429 3600 18249

Income loss before income taxes 409720 316444 124718

Provision for income taxes 144595 128302 50362

Net income loss 265125 $188142 175080

Earnings loss per share

Basic 2.84 1.90 1.62

Diluted 2.78 1.85 1.62

Weighted average shares

Basic 93400271 98791739 107866281

Diluted 95390026 101970321 107866281

The accompanying notes are an integral port of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Hewitt Associates Inc

_______
Year Ended September 30

Amounts in thousands
____________

2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 265125 188142 $175080
Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to

net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization including amortization of deferred

contract revenues and costs 164693 174767 190393
Goodwill and asset impairment 4159 4117 326615
Gain on sale of businesses 9379 35667
Share-based compensation 54329 48345 40937
Deferred income taxes 17332 6976 19147
Fair value adjustment related to financial assets 18

Gain on sale of investments 2581 5982
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

net of effect of acquisitions and dispositions

Client receivables and unbilled work in process 102982 34271 13342
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 35441 51155 4581
Deferred contract costs 92393 102214 143619
Other assets 2600 22646 5102
Accounts payable 5219 4962 11183
Accrued compensation and benefits 1899 34787 82024
Accrued expenses 56422 22518 30842
Advanced billings to clients 11478 1515 7525
Deferred contract revenues 44607 96077 111930
Other lang-term liabilities

________ _________ __________
21054 7184 11366

Net cash provided by operating activities 432998 327902 435230

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of investments 426675 400794
Proceeds from sales of investments 5300 513064 502331
Additions to property and equipment 127907 117556 88477
Cash paid for acquisitions and transaction costs net of cash acquired 61764 134081 45562
Cash received for sale of businesses 1105 42420

Net cash used in investing activities 183266 122828 32502

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from the exercise of share-based awards

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayments of short-term borrowings capital leases and long-term debt

Purchase of Class common shares for treasury

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7307 9171 11666

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 40148 162751 239815

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 541494 378743 138928

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 581642 541494 378743

20052

7002

18119

153062
94388

202277

43606

10227

185468

539751

225977

586227

33152

54183

4912

103771

141610

195835

174579

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Class

Common Shores

In thousands except for shore and per
share amounts Shores Amount

Balance at September 30 2006 124932189 1249

Comprehensive loss

Net loss

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains on short-term investments net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments net of tax

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

Share-based compensation expense

Excess tax benefits from stack plans

Restricted stock unit vesting
613678

Purchase of Class common shares for treasury

Issuance of Class common shares

Employee stock options
2377618 24

Outside Directors
3508

Net forfeiture of restricted common stock pursuant to the global stock plan 254740

Adoption_of
FASB

ASC715-30_recognition
provisions formerly SFAS No 158 net of tax

Balance at September 30 2007 127672253 1277

Comprehensive income

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Unrealized losses on investments net of tax

Retirement Plans net of tax

Unrealized losses on hedging transactions net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments net of tax

Total other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Share-based compensation expense

Excess tax benefits from stock plans

Restricted stock unit vesting
938872

Purchase of Class common shares for treasury

Issuance of Class common shares

Employee stock options
1847653 18

Net forfeiture of restricted common stock pursuant to the global stock plan 67898

Adoption of certain provisions of FASB ASC 740-10 formerly FIN 48

Adoption of FASB ASC 710-10-25-4 formerly EITF 06-02 net of tax

Balance at September 30 2008 130390880 1304

Comprehensive income

Net income

Other comprehensive lass

Unrealized gains on investments net of tax

Retirement Plans net of tax

Unrealized gains on hedging transactions net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments net of tax

Total other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Share-based compensation expense

Excess tax benefits from stock plans

Restricted stock unit vesting
1613745 16

Purchase of Class common shares for treasury

Issuance of Class common shares

Employee stock options
866871

Net forfeiture of restricted common stock pursuant to the global stock plan 27227

Adoption_of
FASB ASC 715-30 measurement date provision formerly SFAS No._158 net of tax

Balance at September 30 2009 132844269 1328

The accompanying notes are on integral part of these financial statements
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Hewitt Associutes Inc

Accumulated

Additional
Other

Paid-in Treasury Stock at Cost
Retained Comprehensive

Capitol Shares Amount Earnings Income
--

Total

$1368189 14109780 401365 213224 75072 $1256369

$175080 175080

49827 49827

49835 49835

125245
40925 40925

9140 9140

6436164 195835 195835

54159 54183

1525 1525
$1472409 20545944 597200 $38144 $123382 $1038012

188142 188142

4273 4273
23834 23834
6412 6412

42173 42173
76692 76692

111450
48345 48345
14744 14744

15617816 586227 586227

43588 43606

7036 7036
12692 12692

$1579077 36163760 $1183427 206558 $46690 650202

265125 265125

1438 1438
10732 10732

4189 4189

37448 37448
42553 42553

222572
54329 54329
9253 9253

16
3145239 94388 94388

20043 20052

1906 188 1718
$1662687 39308999 $1277815 469777 4325 860302
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007

In thousands except for share and per share amounts unless otherwise noted

Description of Business

Hewitt Associates Inc Delaware corporatian and its subsidiaries

Hewitt or the Company provide global human resources bene

fits outsourcing and consulting services Benefits Outsourcing

includes administrative services far health and welfare defined con

tribution and defined benefit plans and absence management

Human Resource Business Process Outsourcing HR BPO includes

workforce administration rewards management recruiting and

staffing payroll processing performance management learninq

and development talent management time and attendance pro

curement expertise and vendor management Hewitts Consultincj

business provides wide array
of consulting and actuarial services

covering the design implementation communication and operation

of health and welfare compensation and retirement plans and

broader human resources programs
and processes

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual

basis of accounting The significant accounting policies are summa

rized below

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
issued Accounting Standards Codification ASC 105 Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles formerly Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards SFAS No 168 The FASBAccountingStan

dards CodificationTM and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Account

ing Principles replacement of FASB Statement No 162 Effective for

reporting periods ending after September 15 2009 Hewitts fourth

quarter of fiscal 2009 this pronouncement established the FASB

ASC as the single source of authoritative nongovernmental U.S Gen

erally Accepted Accounting Principles U.S GAAP The Company

adopted this statement as of September 30 2009 The adoption of

this statement did not have material effect on the financial state

ments or related disclosures However the disclosures have been

updated to include appropriate references to the FASB ASC

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the

operations of the Company and its majority owned subsidiaries after

elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions Invest

ments in affiliated companies in which the Company does not have

control but has the ability to exercise significant influence over gov

ernance and operations generally 2050 percent ownership are

accounted for by the equity method

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in

conformity with U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consoli

dated financial statements and accompanying notes Estimates are

used for but are not limited to the accounting for the allowance for

doubtful accounts depreciation and amortization contract and

project loss reserves performance-based compensation short- and

long-term investments asset impairment taxes and contingencies

Although these estimates are based on managements best knowl

edge of current events and actions that the Company may undertake

in the future actual results may differ from the estimates

Revenue Recognition

Revenues include fees generated from autsourcing contracts

and from consulting services provided to the Companys clients

Revenues from sales or licensing of software are not material The

Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists services have been rendered the fee is fixed

or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured

The Companys outsourcing contracts typically have three-to-five

year terms for benefits services and five-to-ten year terms for HR

BPO services The Company recognizes revenues for non-refundable

up-front implementation fees evenly over the period that the related

ongoing service revenues are recognized Services provided outside

the scope
of the Companys outsourcing contracts are recognized on

time-and-material or fixed-fee basis

The Company provides consulting services to its clients either on

time-and-material or fixed-fee basis Revenues are recognized

monthly under time-and-material-based arrangements as services

are provided On fixed-fee engagements revenues are recognized

either as services are provided using proportional-performance

method or at the completion of project based on facts and circum

stances of the client arrangement

Contract losses on outsourcing or consulting arrangements are

recognized in the period in which the loss becomes probable and the

amount of the loss is reasonably estimable Contract losses are

determined to be the amount by which the estimated direct costs

including any remaining deferred contract costs exceed the esti

mated total revenues that will be generated by the contract When

lass is identified it is first recorded as an impairment of deferred

contract casts related to the specific contract if applicable with the

remaining amount recorded as loss reserve Estimates are moni

tored during the term of the contract and any changes to the esti

mates are recorded in the period the change is identified and may

result in an adjustment to the loss reserve

In connection with FASB ASC 605-25 RevenueRecognitionMulti

ple-ElementArrangements FASB ASC 605-25 the Company has

contracts with multiple elements primarily in its Benefits Outsourc

ing and HR BPO segments Multiple-element arrangements are

assessed to determine whether they can be separated into more

than one unit of accounting FASB ASC 605-25 establishes the fol

lowing criteria all of which must be met in order for deliverable to

qualify as separate unit of accounting

The delivered items have value to the client on stand-alone

basis

There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the

undelivered items and

The arrangement includes general right of return relative to the

delivered items and delivery or performance of the undelivered

items is considered probable and substantially in the control of

the Company
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If there is objective and reliable evidence of fair value for all units

of accounting in an arrangement the arrangement consideration is

allocated to the separate units of accounting based on each units

relative fair value Revenue is then recognized using proportional-

performance method such as recognizing revenue based on trans

actional services delivered or on straight-line basis as adjusted

primarily for volume changes as appropriate If these criteria are

not met deliverables included in an arrangement are accounted for

as single unit of
accounting and revenue and cost are deferred

until the period in which the final deliverable is provided or pre
dominant service level has been attained and then recognized over

the life of the contract

The Company records revenues earned in excess of amounts

billed as current asset unbilled work in process The Company
records amounts billed in excess of revenues earned prior to render

ing services 050 current liability advanced billings to clients

The Company considers the criteria established by FASB ASC 605-

45-45 Revenue RecognitionPrincipal Agent Considerations in

determining whether revenue should be recognized on gross or

net basis Inconsideration of these criteria the Company recognizes

revenue primarily on gross basis Factors considered in determin

ing if
gross or net recognition is appropriate include whether the

Company is primarily responsible to the client for the delivery of

services changes the delivered product performs part of the service

delivered has discretion on vendor selection and bears credit risk

Reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses incurred are

characterized as revenues and are shown as separate component

of total revenues in accordance with FASB ASC 605-45-45-23

Reimbursements Received for Out-of-Pocket Expenses Incurred

Similarly related reimbursable
expenses are also shown separately

within operating expenses

Deferred Contract Costs and Deferred Contract Revenues

For long-term outsourcing service agreements implementation

efforts are often necessary to set up clients and their human

resource or benefit programs on the Companys systems and operat

ing processes For outsourcing services sold separately or accounted

for as separate unit of accounting specific incremental and direct

costs of implementation incurred prior to the services going live are

deferred and amortized over the period that the related ongoing

services revenue is recognized Such costs may include internal and

external costs for coding or customizing systems costs for conver

sion of client data and costs to negotiate contract terms For out-

sourcing services that are accounted for as combined unit of

accounting specific incremental and direct costs ofimplementa

tion as well as ongoing service delivery costs incurred prior to rev

enue recognition commencing are deferred and amortized over the

remaining contract services period Implementation fees are also

generally received from clients either up-front or over the ongoing

services period as component of thefee per participant Lump sum

implementation fees received from client are initially deferred and

then recognized as revenue evenly over the ongoing contract serv

ices period If client terminates an outsourcing services arrange

ment prior to the end of the contract loss on the contract may be

recorded if necessary and any remaining deferred implementation

revenues and costs would then be recognized into earnings over the

remaining service period through the termination date

Performance-Based Compensation

The Companys compensation program includes performance-

based component that is determined by management subject to

annual review by the Compensation and Leadership Committee of

the Board of Directors Performance-based compensation is discre

tionary and is based on individual team and total Company per

formance Performance-based compensation is paid once per fiscal

year after the Companys annual operating results are finalized The

amount of expense for performance-based compensation recog

nized at interim dates involves judgment is based on annual results

as compared to internal targets and takes into account otherfactors

including industry trends and the general economic environment

Annual performance-based compensation levels may vary from cur

rent expectations as result of changes in the actual performance of

the Company team or individual Accrued amounts are subject to

change in future periods if actual performance varies from perform

ance levels anticipated in prior interim periods

Income Taxes

The Company applies the asset and liability method described in

FASB ASC 740 Income Taxes FASB ASC 740 Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributa

ble to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts

of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and

operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are measured using tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The effect of change in tax

rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in

the period in which the change is enacted Valuation allowances are

recognized to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is

more-likely-than-not to be realized In assessing the likelihood of

realization management considers estimates of future taxable

income

Financial statement recognition and measurement of tax posi

tions taken or expected to be taken in tax return requires achieving

more-likely-than-not threshold The Company records liability for

the difference between the benefit recognized and measured pur
suant to FASB ASC 740 and the tax position taken or expected to be

taken on the Companys tax return To the extent that the Companys

assessment of such tax positions changes the change in estimate is

recorded in the period in which the determination is made The con

solidated tax provision and related accruals include the impact of

such reasonably estimable losses and related interest and penalties

as deemed appropriate
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Foreign Currency Translation

The Companys foreign operations use the local currency as their

functional currency Accordingly assets and liabilities of foreign

subsidiaries are translated into U.S dollars at exchange rates in

effect at year-end while revenues and expenses are translated at

average exchange rates prevailing during the year Translation

adjustments are reported as component of accumulated other

comprehensive income net in stockholders equity Gains or losses

resulting from foreign exchange transactions are recorded in earn

ings within other income expense net Transaction gains losses

totaled $6000 $254 and $3589 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Companys financial instruments that are exposed to concentra

tions of credit risk consist of cash equivalents client receivables

unbilled work in process
and short- and long-term investments

Hewitt invests its cash equivalents in government and agency secu

rities the highest rated money market and similar investments and

continuously monitors the investment ratings Concentrations of

credit risk with respect to unbilled work in process
and receivables

ore limited as no client makes up significant portion of the Com

ponys billings The majority of the Companys short- and long-term

investments are comprised of federally insured student loan-backed

securities which are rated Aaa/AAA/AAA by Moodys SP and Fitch

respectively and are spread among many state issuers Credit risk

itself is limited due to the Companys large number of Fortune500

clients its clients strong credit histories and their dispersion across

many different industries and geographic regions For each of the

years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 no single client

represented ten percent or more of the Companys total revenues

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents and client receivables are financial

assets with carrying values that approximate fair value Accounts

payable and the Companys variable rate debt are financial liabili

ties with carrying values that approximate fair value As of Septem

ber 30 2009 and 2008 the carrying value of the Companys fixed

rate unsecured senior term notes was $276000 and $283000

respectively and the fair value was estimated to be approximately

$294368 and $287649 respectively The estimate of fair value

was calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the senior

term notes at rates currently offered to the Company for similar debt

instruments with comparable maturities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company defines cash and cash equivalents as cash and invest

ments with maturities of 90 days or less when purchased At Sep

tember 30 2009 and 2008 cash and cash equivalents included

cash in checking and money market accounts as well as corporate

tax-advantaged money market investments maturing in 90 days or

less At September 30 2008 $814 of the Companys cash was

restricted in connection with prior year acquisition The restricted

cash held at September 30 2008 was paid out under the terms of an

Escrow Agreement on October 30 2008

Funds Held for Clients

Some of the Companys autsourcing agreements require the Com

pany to hold funds on behalf of clients Funds held on behalf of

clients are segregated from Hewitt corporate funds There is usually

short period between when the Company receives funds and when

it pays obligations on behalf of clients

Investments

Short-term and long-term investments include marketable debt

securities that are classified as available-for-sale or trading and

recorded at fair value Marketable debt securities include auction

rate securities ARS which generally have long-term nominal

maturities that exceed one year with interest rates that reset period

ically in scheduled auctions generally every 735 days Unrealized

gains or losses are reported as component of accumulated other

comprehensive income net to the extent they are deemed tempo

rary Realized gains or losses and other-than-temporary unrealized

losses are reported in other income expense net on the consoli

dated statements of operations

Refer to Note for more information on the Companys invest

ments

Client Receivables and Unbilled Work in Process

The Company periodically evaluates the collectibility of its client

receivables and unbilled work in process
based on combination of

factors In circumstances where the Company becomes aware ofa

specific clients difficulty in meeting its financial obligations e.g

bankruptcy the Company records an allowance for doubtful

accounts to reduce the client receivable or unbilled work in process

to the amount the Company reasonably believes will be collected

For all other clients the Company recognizes an allowance for

doubtful accounts based an past write-off history and the length of

time the receivables are past due or unbilled work in process is not

billed Facts and circumstances may change that would require the

Company to alter its estimates of the collectibility of client receiv

ables and unbilled work in process Accounts are written off against

the allowance when the Company determines that the receivable or

unbilled work in process will not be collected
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment which include amounts recorded under

capital leases are recorded at cost Depreciation and amortization

are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated use

ful lives of the assets which are as follows

Asset Description Asset Life

Computer equipment to years

Capitalized software to years

Telecommunications equipment years

Furniture and equipment to 15 years

Buildings 39
years

Buildings under capital lease 15 years

Leasehold improvements Lesser of estimated

useful life or lease term

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount ofan

asset may not be recoverable Recoverability of long-lived assets

held for use are assessed by comparison of the carrying amount

of the asset to the estimated future undiscounted net cash flows

expected to be generated by the asset If the estimated future undis

counted net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the

asset the asset is considered impaired and expense is recorded in

an amount required to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its

fair value

Software Development Costs

Costs for software developed for internal use are accounted for in

accordance with FASB ASC 350-40 IntangiblesGoodwill and

OtherInternal-Use Software FASB ASC 350-40 FASB ASC 350-

40 requires the capitalization of certain costs incurred in connection

with developing or obtaining internal-use software Client-related

costs capitalized in accordance with FASB ASC 350-40 are included

in deferred contract costs while capitalized costs for internal-use

software are included in property and equipment in the consolidated

balance sheet The Company amortizes the cost of software

obtained or developed for internal use over periods ranging from

three to five years The Company amortizes the cost of software

developed for client use overthe life of the related client contract

Costs that are incurred in the preliminary project stage are

expensed as incurred Once the capitalization criteria of FASB ASC

350-40 have been met external direct costs of materials and serv

ices consumed in developing or obtaining internal-use computer

software payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are

directly associated with and who devote time to the internal-use

computer software project to the extent of their time is spent

directly on the project and interest costs incurred when developing

computer software for internal use are capitalized

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment annually or

more frequently if indicators of impairment arise The evaluation is

based upon comparison of the estimated fair value of the reporting

unit to which the goodwill has been assigned to the net assets for

that reporting unit The fair values used in this evaluation are esti

mated based upon discounted future cash flow projections for the

reporting unit

Intangible assets are initially valued at fair value using generally

accepted valuation methods appropriate for the type of intangible

asset Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their

estimated useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if indicators

of impairment arise The evaluation of impairment is based upon

comparison of the carrying amount of the intangible asset to the

estimated future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be gener

ated by the asset If the estimated future undiscounted net cash

flaws are less than the carrying amount of the asset the asset is con

sidered impaired The impairment expense is determined by com

paring the estimated fair value of the intangible asset to its carrying

value with any shortfall from fair value recognized as an expense in

the current period

Amortization of the Companys definite-lived intangible assets is

computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful

lives of the assets which are as follows

Asset Description Asset Life

Trademarks and tradenames to 10 years

Core technology to 10 years

Customer relationships to 30 years

Share-Based Compensation

Restricted stock awards including restricted stock and restricted

stock units are measured using the fair market value of the stock as

of the grant date The Company recognizes compensation expense

net of estimated forfeitures on straight-line basis over the vesting

period Compensation cast of all share-based awards with perform

ance conditions are recognized on straight-line basis if cliff-vest

ing or on an accelerated-attribution basis if graded-vesting over

the requisite service period or the implicit service period if it is prob

able that the performance conditions will be met Estimated for

feitures are reviewed periodically and changes to the estimated

forfeiture rate are recorded in current period earnings Employer

payroll taxes are also recorded as expense over the vesting period

The remaining unvested shares are subject to forfeiture and restric

tions on sale or transfer based on vesting dates

The Company also grants nonqualified stack options at an exer

cise price equal to the fair market value of the Companys stock on

the grant date The Company applies the Black-Scholes valuation

method to compute the estimated fair value of the stock options and
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recognizes compensation expense net of estimated forfeitures on

straight-line basis so that the award is fully expensed at the vesting

date Generally stock options vest 25 percent on each anniversary

of the grant date are fully vested four years from the grant date and

have term often years

The Company uses the simplified method to determine the

expected life assumption for all of its options The Company contin

ues to use the simplified method as it does not believe that it has suf

ficient historical exercise data to provide reasonable basis upon

which to estimate expected life due to the limited time its equity

shares have been publicly traded

New Accounting PronouncementsFair Value Measurements

In April 2009 the FASB issued three Staff Positions FSPs
intended to provide additional application guidance regarding fair

value measurements and impairments of securities These FSPs

were incorporated into the FASB ASC collectively ASCs The FSPs

included the following

FSP FAS 157-4 Determining Fair Value When the Volume and

Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly

Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly

included in FASB ASC 820-10 Fair ValueMeasurements and

DisclosuresOverall This FSP relates to determining fair

value when there is no active market or where the price inputs

being used represent distressed sales Specifically it reaffirms

the need to use judgment to ascertain if formerly active mar

ket has become inactive and in determining fair value when

markets have become inactive

ii FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 Interim Disclosures about

Fair Value of Financial Instruments included in FASB ASC 825-

10-50 FinanciallnstrumentsOverallDisclOsure This FSP

relates to fair value disclosures for any financial instruments

that are not currently reflected on the balance sheet at fair

value This FSP amends SEAS No 107 Disclosures about Fair

Value of Financiallnstruments and APB Opinion No 28 Interim

Financial Reporting to require disclosures about fair value at

interim periods

iii FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 Recognition and Presentation of

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments included in FASB ASC

320-10-35 In vestmentsOverallSubsequent Measurement

This FSP amends the other-than-temporary impairment guid

ance in U.S GAAP to make the guidance more operational and

to improve the presentation of other-than-temporary impair

ments in the financial statements Under this FSP if an impaii

ment exists and the entity intends to sell the security or it is

more-likely-than-not that an entity will sell the debt or equity

security before recovery the impairment is considered other-

than-temporary and the entire amount of the impairment is

recognized in earnings Additionally if an impairment of

debt security exists and it is more-likely-than-not that an entity

will not sell the debt security before recovery
of its cost basis

but it is probable that the investor will be unable to collect all

amounts due according to the contractual terms of the secu

rity the impairment is considered other-than-temporary

The amount of the impairment related to credit losses is

recognized in earnings and the amount of the impairment

related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive

income

The Company adopted the provisions of the above three ASCs as of

June 30 2009 The application of the provisions of these ASCs did

not have material effect on the consolidated financial statements

In August 2009 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

ASU 2009-05 Fair Value Measurements andDisclosures Measur

ing Liabilities at Fair Value ASU 2009-05 ASU 2009-05 provides

amendments to FASB ASC 820-10 Fair Value Measurements and Dis

closuresOverall FASB ASC 820-10 for the fair value measure

ment of liabilities This update provides clarification that in

circumstances in which quoted price in an active market forthe

identical liability is not available an entity is required to measure

fair value using valuation technique that uses quoted price of the

identical liability when traded as an asset quoted price for similar

liabilities or similar liabilities when traded as an asset or another

valuation technique that is consistent with the principles of ASC

820 This ASU is effective for the first period including interim peri

ods beginning after issuance Hewitts first quarter of fiscal year

2010 The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact if

any of this ASU on its consolidated financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for

FinancialAssets and Financial LiabilitiesIncluding an amendment of

FASBStatementNo 115 SEAS No 159 This guidance is included

in FASB ASC 825 Financial Instruments This statement permits enti

ties to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain

other items at fair value This statement is effective as of the begin

ning of an entitys first fiscal year that begins after November 15

2007 Hewitts fiscal year 2009 The Company adopted SEAS

No 159 as of October 2008 and elected to apply the fair value

option to put option relating to its auction rote securities refer to

Note for more information on auction rate securities The adop

tion of SEAS No 159 did not have material impact on the Com

panys consolidated financial statements

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value

Measurements SFAS No 157 This guidance is included in FASB

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures This statement

establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands dis

closures about fair value measurements The changes to current

practice resulting from the application of this statement relate to the

definition of fair value the methods used to measure fair value and

the expanded disclosures about fair value measurements The state

ment is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007

Hewitts fiscal year 2009 and interim periods within those fiscal

years
In February 2008 the FASB issued FSP No FAS 157-2 Effec

tive Date of FASBStatement No 157 also refer to FASB ASC 820-10-

65 Fair Value Measurements and DisclosuresOverall Transition and

Open Effective Date Information This ESP provides one-year defer

ral of the effective date of SFAS Na 157 for nan-financial assets and

non-financial liabilities except for those that are recognized or dis

closed in the financial statements at fair value at least annually In
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October 2008 the FASB issued FSP No 157-3 Determining the Fair

Value of FinoncialAsset When the Market for ThatAsset is NotActive

FSP 157-3 This FSP is included in FASB ASC 320-1O-35-55A

Fair Value Measurements and DisclosuresOverallSubsequent Meas

urementFinancialAssets in Market That Is NotActive FSP 157-3

clarifies the application of SEAS No 157 FASB ASC 820 in market

that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key consider

ations in determining the fair value of financial asset when the

market for that financial asset is not active FSP 157-3 was effective

upon issuance The provisions of SFAS No 157 were applied

prospectively to fair value measurements and disclosures for finan

cial assets and financial liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair

value in the financial statements on at least an annual basis begin

ning in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 The adoption of SFAS No 157

did not have material effect on the Companys consolidated finan

cial statements

See Note for additional information on fair value measure

ments

New Accounting PronouncementsOther

In September 2006 the FASB issued SEAS No 158 Employers

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement

Planson amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R
SEAS No 158 This statement is included in EASB ASC 715 Com

pensationRetirementBenef its The statement requires an employer

to recognize the over-funded or under-funded status of defined

benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability in its balance

sheet and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in

which the changes occur through other comprehensive income The

statement also requires an employer to measure plan assets and

benefit obligations as of the date of the employers fiscal year-end

The Company adopted the recognition and disclosure requirements

of the statement as of September 30 2007 Hewitts fiscal
year

2007 The Company adopted the measurement date requirements

as of September 30 2009 The adoption of the measurement date

requirements resulted in an increase of $2948 to other non-current

liabilities an increase to deferred income tax assets of $1230 an

increase of $188 to accumulated other comprehensive income and

decrease of $1906 to retained earnings

Eorfurther discussion on Hewitts retirement plans see Note 17

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontralling

Interests in Consolidated Financial Statementsan amendment of ARB

No 51 Also refer to FASB ASC 10-10-65 ConsolidationOverall

Transition and Open Effective Date Information This statement estab

lishes accounting and reporting standards for noncontrolling

interests and transactions between the reporting party and such

noncontrolling interests This statement is effective for fiscal years

and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning on or after

December 15 2008 Hewitts fiscal year 2010 The Company is cur

rently evaluating the potential impact if any of this statement on its

consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the EASB issued SEAS No 141R Business

Combinations SFAS No 141R This statement is included in

FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations This statement requires the

Company to continue to follow the guidance in SEAS Na 141 also

included in FASB ASC 805 for certain aspects of business combi

nations and provides additional guidance defining the acquirer

recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired the

liabilities assumed any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree

assets and liabilities arising from contingencies defining bargain

purchase and recognizing and measuring goodwill or gain from

bargain purchase This statement also requires transaction costs to

be charged to earnings and requires contingent consideration to be

recorded at its fair value on the acquisition date In addition under

this statement adjustments associated with changes in tax contin

gencies that occur after the measurement period not to exceed one

year are recorded as adjustments to income This statement is effec

tive for all business combinations for which the acquisition date is

on or after the beginning of an entitys first fiscal year that begins

after December 15 2008 Hewitts fiscal year 2010 however the

guidance in this statement regarding the treatment of income tax

contingencies is retrospective to business combinations completed

prior to October 2009 The Company will adopt this statement for

any business combinations occurring subsequent to October

2009

In March 2008 the EASB issued SEAS No 161 Disclosures about

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitiesan amendment of FASB

Statement No 133 This statement is included in FASB ASC 815

Derivatives and Hedging This statement amends and expands the

disclosure requirements of EASB Statement No 133 Accounting for

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities also included in FAS

ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging This statement is effective for

financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods

beginning after November 15 2008 Hewitts second quarter offis

cal
year 2009 The Company adopted this statement January

2009 and included the required disclosures in Note

In June 2008 the EASB issued FSP EITF 03-6-1 Determining

Whetherinstruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions

Are ParticipatingSecurities This FSP was included in EASB ASC 260-

10-55 Earnings Per ShareOverallImplementation Guidance and

Illustrations This FSP addresses whether securities granted in share-

based payment transactions are participating securities prior to

vesting and therefore need to be included in the earnings allocation

in computing earnings per share under the two-class method

described in ASC 260-1O-45-59A/60B Earnings Per ShareOverall

OtherPresentation Matters This guidance is effective for financial

statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after December 15

2008 and interim periods within those
years Hewitts first quarter

of fiscal 2010 All prior-period earnings per share data presented

shall be adjusted retrospectively to conform to the provisions of this

guidance The Company has determined that this guidance will not

currently impact its consolidated financial statements as it does not

have participating securities with non-forfeitable right to divi

dends pursuant to FASB ASC 260-10-55 as of September 30 2009

In December 2008 the FASB issued ESP FAS 132R-i Employ

ers Disclosures about Pastretirement Benefit Plan Assets This ES was

included in FASB ASC 715-20 CompensationRetirementBenef its

Defined Benefit PlansGeneral This ESP expands the disclosure
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requirements relating to an employers plan assets of defined ben

efit pension or other postretirement plan The additional disclosures

required under this guidance ore to be included in the fiscal year

ending after December 15 2009 Hewitts fiscal year 2010 The

Company is currently evaluating the potential impact if any of this

guidance on its consolidated financial statements

In May 2009 the FASB issued SEAS No 165Subsequent Events

This statement is included in EASB ASC 855-10 Subsequent Events

Overall This statement requires the Company to disclose the date

through which subsequent events have been evaluated as well as

whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued or

the date the financial statements were available to be issued This

statement is effective for interim or annual financial periods ending

afterJune 15 2009 Hewitts third quarter of fiscal 2009 The Corn-

pony adopted this statement as ofJune 30 2009 and has included

the required disclosures later in Note

In October 2009 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

ASU No 09-13 Revenue RecognitionMultiple Deliverable

Revenue Arrangements ASU 09-13 ASU 09-13 updates the

existing multiple-element revenue arrangements guidance currently

included in FASB ASC 605-25 The revised guidance provides for

two significant changes to the existing multiple element revenue

arrangements guidance The first change relates to the determina

tion of when the individual deliverables included in multiple-ele

ment arrangement may be treated as separate units of accounting

The second change modifies the manner in which the transaction

consideration is allocated across the separately identified deliver

ables The first change will likely result in the requirement to sepa

rate more deliverables within an arrangement ultimately leading to

less revenue deferral Together these changes are likely to result in

earlier recognition of revenue and related costs for multiple-element

arrangements than under previous guidance This guidance also

significantly expands the disclosures required for multiple-element

revenue arrangements The revised multiple-element revenue

arrangements guidance will be effective for the first annual report

ing period beginning on or after June 15 2010 Hewitts fiscal

2011 however early adoption is permitted provided that the

revised guidance is retroactively applied to the beginning of the year

of adoption Hewitt will adopt the provisions of this update effective

October 12009 the beginning of fiscal 2010 for all new contracts

and material modifications of existing contracts on or after October

2009 The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the

odoption of ASU 09-13 and expects adoption of this ASU will result

in earlier recognition of revenue and related costs and decline

in revenue deferral and related cost deferral on certain multiple-

element arrangements in the Benefits Outsourcing and HR BPO

operating segments

Reclassifications

Certain prior-year amounts hove been reclassified to conform to the

current-year presentation

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events after the balance

sheet date of September 30 2009 through November 10 2009

which is the date that the accompanying financial statements were

issued

Client Receivables and Unbilled Work in Process

Client receivables and unbilled work in process net of allowances at

September 30 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following

2009 2008

Client receivables $319419 $414160

Unbilled work in process 207853 241383

Total $527272 $655543

The activity in the client receivable and unbilled work in process

allowances for the years
ended September 30 2009 2008 and

2007 consisted of the following

2009 2008 2007

Balance at beginning of year 18029 $18933 $25333

Increase in allowances 11798 12044 8667

Use of allowances 15446 12948 15067

Balance at end of
year 14381 $18029 $18933

Acquisitions and Divestitures

The Company continually assesses strategic acquisitions to com

plement its current business or to expand related services The

Company also continually assesses opportunities to streamline its

current business and to focus on core offerings During fiscal 2009

2008 and 2007 the Company completed the following acquisitions

and divestitures

2009 Acquisitions and Divestitures

On June 30 2009 the Company acquired the remaining shares of its

former joint venture BodeHewitt AG Co 1KG BodeHewitt one of

the leading pension and benefits consultancies in Germany The

total purchase price of 62500 $85400 at various dates reflects

the acquisition of 100% of BodeHewitt shares in stages over several

years In June 2009 the Company paid 50000 $70400 at June

30 2009 in cash in exchange for the remaining 72.25% of out

standing shares of BodeHewitt The preliminary purchase price allo

cation resulted in the aggregate allocation of $57339 to goodwill

as of September 30 2009 which was assigned to the Consulting

segment The Company will finalize the opening balance sheet

related to this acquisition during fiscal 2010 As the acquisition

closed on June 30 2009 the assets and liabilities of BodeHewitt

have been consolidated into the Companys balance sheet while

the results of operations have been included in the consolidated

statements of operations beginning with the Companys fiscal

fourth quarter Priorto this date the Company accounted for its invest

ment in BodeHewitt under the equity method of accounting This
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acquisition is not considered to be material to the Company and

therefore pro-forma information has not been presented

In February 2009 the Company closed on the sale of the net

assets and stock relating to its Latin America HR BP0 business Addi

tionally in March 2009 the Company closed on the sale of the net

assets relating to its HR BPO mobility services business Both

divestitures were part of the Companys efforts to streamline its

HR BPO service offerings

The Company recorded pretax gain of $9068 primarily related

to the recognition of cumulative currency translation adjustments

during fiscal 2009 as result of the sale of its Latin America HR BPO

business The Company recorded pretax gain of $311 during fiscal

2009 as result of the sale of its HR BPO mobility services business

The Company has ongoing contractual obligations to provide the

services previously provided by the divested businesses has con

tracted with the buyers for those services and continues to have

direct cash flows with respect to such services Because of the Com

panys continued direct cash flows related to these divested busi

nesses the related operations are not classified as discontinued

operations

2008 Acquisitions and Divestitures

During 2008 the Company acquired leaves management business

and two Talent and Organization Consulting businesses for cash at

an aggregate cost of $134081 The purchase price allocations

resulted in the aggregate allocation of $97049 to goodwill of

which $59541 was assigned to the Benefits Outsourcing segment

and $37508 was assigned to the Consulting segment The Com

pany finalized the opening balance sheets related to these acquisi

tions during fiscal 2009

On January 31 2008 the Company sold the net assets of its

Cyborg business Cyborg Cyborg was acquired in 2003 and pro

vided licensed processed and hosted payroll software services Its

operations were included in the HR BPO segment The divestiture

was part of the Companys efforts to streamline its HR outsourcing

service offerings The Company recorded pretax gain of $35667

during fiscal 2008 as result of the sale

The Company has ongoing contractual obligations to provide the

services previously provided by the divested business has con

tracted with the buyer forthose services and continues to have direct

cash flows with respect to such services Because of the Companys

continued direct cash flows related to this divested business the

related operations are not classified as discontinued operations

2007 Acquisitions

On September 2007 the Company purchased 100% of the out

standing shares of RealLife HR Inc RealLife for $42000 Real-

Life was health and welfare administration firm located in the U.S

which historically had focused on outsourcing services for mid-

market entities The Company finalized its purchase price allocation

in fiscal 2008 resulting in goodwill of $23416 recorded in the

Benefits Outsourcing segment

Investments

At September 30 2009 the Companys short- and long-term invest

ments were comprised of $115436 in auction rote securities

ARS While the underlying securities generally have long-term

nominal maturities that exceed one year the interest rates on these

investments reset periodically in scheduled auctions generally

every 735 days The Company has the opportunity to sell its invest

ments during such periodic auctions subject to buyer availability

During February 2008 issues in the global credit and capital mar

kets led to failed auctions with respect to the Companys ARS Since

February 2008 all of the Companys outstanding ARS were subject

to failed auctions During fiscal 2008 $7950 of the Companys ARS

issues were called by the issuers at par During fiscal 2009 $5300

of the Companys ARS issues were called by the issuers at par

In November 2008 the Company accepted an offer from UBS AG

UBS one of its investment brokers to sell at par value auction

rate securities originally purchased from UBS par value of $67150

as of September 30 2009 at any time during two-year period

beginning June 30 2010 UBS also has the right to buy the ARS at

par value from the Company at any time By accepting this put

option the Company demonstrated it has the intent to sell these ARS

under the terms of the UBS offer Therefore the decline of $2349 in

the fair value of the UBS-brokered ARS below their par value that

was previously considered temporary unrealized loss and included

in other comprehensive income net as of September 30 2008 is

now considered other-than-temporary and has been included in

earnings as realized loss during fiscal 2009 The Company also

changed the classification of the UBS-brokered ARS from available-

for-sale securities to trading securities and has recorded total

unrealized loss of $3807 during the year ended September 30

2009 on the UBS-brokered ARS in earnings after the change in clas

sification These changes resulted in total expense of $6156 dur

ing the year ended September 30 2009 which is included within

other expense income net in the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations

The Company has elected the fair value measurement option

under FASB ASC 825 for the put option See Note for additional

information on fair value measurements The Company has recog

nized the initial fair value of the put option of $12692 as an asset

within prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompany

ing consolidated balance sheets and recorded the resulting gain

within other expense income net in the accompanying consoli

dated statements of operations The unrealized loss from the subse

quent decrease in fair value of the put option of $6554 is included

within other expense income net in the accompanying consoli

dated statements of operations The total impact of the put option

and losses related to the reclassification and changes in the fair

value of the UBS-brokered ARS was loss of $18 during the
year

ended September 30 2009 which is included within other

expense income net in the accompanying consolidated state

ments of operations
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The Company reclassified the UBS-brokered ARS and related put

option to current assets during fiscal 2009 as they are expected to

be realized within one year from September 30 2009

At September 30 2009 the Companys ARS portfolio with par

value of $126150 hod fair value of $115436 and the related

put option had fair value of $6138 In the absence of observable

market data the Company used discounted cash flow model to

determine the estimated fair value of its ARS and related put option

at September 30 2009 Refer to Note for additional information

on the fair value measurement process for the Companys auction

rate securities and related put option

Below isa reconciliation of the par value and estimated fairvalue of the Companys auction rate securitiesforthe year ended September 30 2009

Trading

JBS-Brokered ABS

Estimated

Par Value Fair Volue

$-

Losses are recorded in other expense income net within the consolidated statements of operations

2Includes realized loss of $2349 transferred to earnings from other comprehensive income

Available-Pci-Sn Ic

Non-UBS-Brakered ARS

Estimated

Par Value FairValue

$131450 $124530

As of September 30 2009 approximately 97% of the Companys

ARS portfolio was comprised of federally insured student loon-

backed securities and 80% of the Companys ARS portfolio was

comprised of Aoa/AAA/AAA rated investments by Moodys SP
and Fitch respectively

The impairment of the non-UBS-brokered available-for-sale ARS

portfolio is considered to be temporary because the Company does

not have the intent to sell nor is it more-likely-than-not that the Corn-

pony will be required to sell the portfolio before recovery
of its cost

basis and because there has been no significant deterioration in the

creditworthiness of the underlying issuers However the Company

will reassess this conclusion in future reporting periods based on

several factors including possible failure of the investments to be

redeemed potential deterioration of the credit ratings of the invest

ments market risk the Companys continued intent to not sell the

portfolio before recovery of its cost basis and other factors Such

reassessment may result in conclusion that these investments ore

other-than-temporarily impaired If it is determined that the fair

value of these securities is other-than-temporarily impaired the

Company would record loss in its consolidated statements of oper

ations which could hove material adverse effect on its results of

operations and financial condition

Long-term investments

Due in less than one year

Due after one year through five years

Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years

Total

September 30 2009

Estima ted

Par Value Fair Value

September 30 2008

Estimated

Par Voice Fair Value

5000 5000

126450 119530

$131450 $124530

Additionally the Companys trading auction rote securities with ci

par value of $67150 and an estimated fair market value of $60994

as of September 30 2009 are expected to be redeemed pursuant tct

the UBS offer as discussed above

The total unrealized loss recorded in accumulated other compre

hensive income net related to available-for-sole securities was

$4558 $2835 net of tax and $6920 $4273 net of tax as of

September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively

Balance at October 12008

Transfer of UBS-brokered ARS securities from

available-for-sale to trading

Sold during the period

Change in unrealized loss included in

other comprehensive income

Losses included in earnings21

Balance at September 30 2009

68800 66451 68800 66451
1650 1650 3650 3650

2349 13

6156

$67150 $60994 59000 54442

Total ABS

Est in ted

Par Value Fair Value

$131450 $124530

5300 5300

2362

6156

$126150 $115436

Based on the contractual maturities of the available-for-sale auction rate securities as of September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively the

par value and estimated fair value of the securities were as follows

59000 54442

$59000 $54442
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Derivative Instruments

In the normal course of business the Company is exposed to the

impact of foreign currency fluctuations and interest rate changes

The Company manages portion of these risks by using derivative

instruments to reduce the effects of changes in foreign currency

exchange rates and interest rates on its operating results and cash

flows

As result of the use of derivative instruments the Company is

exposed to the risk that counterparties to derivative contracts will

fail to meet their contractual obligations To mitigate the counter-

party credit risk the Company has policy of only entering into con

tracts with carefully selected major financial institutions based upon

their credit ratings and other factors The Company also continually

assesses the creditworthiness of counterparties

In its hedging programs the Company uses forward contracts and

interest rate swaps The Company does not use derivatives for trad

ing or speculative purposes brief description of the Companys

hedging programs is as follows

Currency Hedging

The Company has substantial operation in India for the develop

ment and deployment of technology solutions as well as for client

and business support activities The Company utilizes foreign cur

rency risk management program involving the use of foreign cur

rency derivatives to hedge up to 75% of the Indian rupee INR
exposure The Company uses cash flow hedges to hedge forecasted

transactions with its India operations The Company enters into non-

deliverable forward exchange contracts as hedges of anticipated

cash flows denominated in Indian rupees These contracts protect

against the risk that the eventual cash flows resulting from such

transactions will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates

between the U.S dollar and the Indian rupee

Interest Rate Risk Management

On August 2008 the Company entered into loan agreement that

provides for senior unsecured term loan in the amount of

$270000 the Term Loan The Term Loan initially bears interest

at margin of 150 basis points over LIBOR and matures on August

2013 without amortization The Company is exposed to interest

rate risk from this long-term variable-rate debt The Company uses

cash flow hedges to hedge future interest payments on the Term

Loan The Company entered into interest rate swaps to partially con

vert this variable rate exposure into fixed rate As of March 31 2009
the Company had swapped $270000 of the Term Loan for the first

three years $185000 for the fourth year and $100000 for the fifth

year Only the variable LIBOR piece of the Term Loan was swapped

to fixed rate These contracts protect against the risk that the even

tual cash flows resulting from such transactions will be adversely

affected by changes in interest rates As of September 30 2009

these hedges are still in place

All derivatives are recognized in the balance sheet at fair value

Fair values for the Companys derivative financial instruments are

based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments or if

none are available on pricing models or formulas using current

assumptions Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are highly

effective are recorded in other comprehensive income net until the

underlying transactions occur Realized gains or losses resulting

from the cash flow hedges are recognized together with the hedged

transaction in the consolidated statement of operations The effec

tiveness of the cash flow hedges is evaluated on quarterly basis If

cash flow hedge is no longer highly effective the unrealized gains

or lasses for the ineffective portion are recognized in other income

expense net in the consolidated statements of operations At the

inception date the Company formally documents all relationships

between hedging instruments and hedged items as well as its risk

management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedg

ing activities This process includes matching all derivatives that are

designated as cash flow hedges to specific forecasted transactions

The Company also formally assesses bath at the hedges inception

and on an ongoing basis whether the derivatives that are used in

hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in

cash flows of hedged items At September 30 2009 all hedges were

determined to be highly effective

The following table summarizes the fair value of derivative

instruments and their respective balance sheet classifications at

September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively

Derivatives designated as

hedging instruments

Foreign exchange contractst1

Interest rate contracts

Total derivatives designated as

hedging instruments

As of September 30 2009

Asset Liabbity

DeOvatives DeDvatives

Total derivatives $6110

As of

September 30
2008

Liobbity

Derivatives

Derivatives designated as

hedging instruments

Foreign exchange contracts 9110

Interest rate contracts1t 1273

Total derivatives designated as

hedging instruments $10383

Total derivatives $10383

$5492

618 9684

$6110 $9684

$9684

Asset derivatives are classified within prepciid expenses and other current assets in

the consolidated balance sheets Liability derivatives are classified within accrued

expenses in the consolidated balance sheets
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The following tables summarize the effect of derivative instruments on the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended

September 30 2009 and 2008

Derivative Instruments in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Amount of Gain Loss

Recognized in Other

Comprehensive Income OCI
on Derivatives

effecive portion

2009 2008

3701 $13116

Location of Gain

Loss Reclassified

from Accumulated

OCT into Income

effective portion

Compensation and

related expenses

At September 30 2009 the notional value of the derivatives related

to outstanding non-deliverable Indian rupee forward contracts

maturing by December 2010 was $90724 INR 4660741 and the

notional value of the derivatives related to the interest rate swaps

was $270000 The estimated net amount of gains and losses at

September 30 2009 that is expected to be reclassified from accu

mulated other comprehensive income into income within the next

twelve months is net gain of approximately $4793

During the third quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company also used

derivative instruments to hedge certain cash transactions to reduce

the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates These

derivatives did not qualify for hedge accounting and the impact of

these derivative instruments which were settled during the third

quarter was gain of $1903 which was recorded to other

expenseincome net in the consolidated statements of operations

Fair Value Measurements

On October 2008 the Company adopted the provisions of FASB

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures FASB ASC 820
formerly SEAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements as amended by

FSP FAS 157-3 for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on

recurring basis Pursuant to FASB ASC 820-10-65 Fair Value Meas

urements and DisclasuresOverall Transition and Open Effective Date

Informatian formerly FSP FAS 157-2 the Company will nat apply

the provisions of FASB ASC 820 to non-financial assets and non

financial liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed irt

the financial statements at fair value at least annually until October

2009 Hewitts fiscal year 2010

FASB ASC 820 establishes framework far measuring fair value

clarifies the definition of fair value within that framework and

expands disclosures about the use affair value measurements FASB

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell

an asset or paid to transfer liability i.e an exit price in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date

fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the

asset or transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the

asset or liability or in the absence of principal market the most

advantageous market for the asset or liability

FASB ASC 820 specifies hierarchy of valuation techniques

based upon whether the inputs to those valuation techniques reflect

assumptions that other market participants would use based upon

market data obtained from independent sources observable inputs

or reflect the Companys own assumptions of market participant val

uation unobservable inputs Valuation techniques used to measure

fair value under FASB ASC 820 must maximize the use of observable

inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs FASB ASC 820

establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the use of inputs

used in valuation techniques into the following three levels

Level 1Quoted prices in active markets that are unadjusted and

accessible at the measurement date for identical unrestricted

assets or liabilities

Level 2Quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in

markets that are not active quoted prices for similarassets and

liabilities in active markets or financial instruments for which

significant inputs are observable either directly or indirectly and

Level 3Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both

significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable

When available the Company uses unadjusted quoted market prices

to measure fair value and classifies such items within Level If

quoted market prices are not available fair value is based upon

internally-developed models that use where possible current mar

ket-based or independently-sourced market parameters such as

interest rates and currency rates Items valued using internally-gen

erated models are classified according to the lowest level input or

value driver that is significant to the valuation Thus an item may be

classified in Level even though there may be inputs that are readily

observable If quoted market prices are not available the valuation

model used depends on the specific asset or liability being valued

Pursuant to FASB ASC 825 the Company elected to measure and

report put option of $12692 relating to its auction rate securities

refer to Note for more information at fair value in order to

account for the put option on the same basis measured at fair

value through earnings as the associated asset the auction rate

securities

Foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate contracts 7793 1273

Total $4092 $14389

mo nt of Gain Loss

Reclassified from Accumulated

OCT into Income

effective portion

2009 2008

$10901 $4006

N/A N/A

$10901 $4006
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The following table represents the Companys fair value hierarchy for its financial assets and liabilities cash equivalents investments and

derivatives measured at fair value on recurring basis as of September 30 2009

Assets

Cash and money market funds

Auction-rate securities

Derivative assets

ulncludes the put option measured at fair value under FASB ASC 825 and classified as Level

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Level assets consist of trading and available-for-sale auction rate

securities classified as short- and long-term investments respec

tively and related put option as of September 30 2009 In the

absence of observable market data the Company used discounted

cash flow model to determine the estimated fair value of its ARS and

related put option at September 30 2009

The assumptions used in the preparation of the discounted cash

flow model were based on data available as of September 30 2009

and include estimates of interest rates timing and amount of cash

flaws credit and liquidity premiums and expected holding periods of

the ARS and exercise date of the put option These assumptions will

be subject to change as the underlying data changes and market

conditions evolve The assumed interest income yields for the Com

panys ARS used in the discounted cash flow model were based on

the yields provided for in the prospectus of each of the Companys

ARS issues factoring in the forward yield curve The assumed dis

count rate used in the discounted cash flow model was based on the

implied spreads on recent student loan issues and included an illiq

uidity factor which reflects the illiquidity in the ARS market The

assumed discount period used in the discounted cash flow model

was determined by the Company by assigning set of probabilities

based on how the Company views its ARS to be liquidated and

included the current pace of redemptions at par and the average

term that students take to repay related student loans

one percentage point change on the interest income yields

would impact the fair value of the ARS holdings and put option by

approximately $4039 one percentage point change on the dis

count rate used for valuing the ARS holdings and put option would

impact the fair value by approximately $2557
Refer to Note Sfor additional information on auction rate securities

The following table provides reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for the assets measured at fair value using significant

unobservable inputs Level

Foir Value Measurements at Reporting Dote

Using Significant Unobservable Inputs

Level

Auction rote

securities Put option Total

Balance at October 2008 $124530 $124530

Change in unrealized loss included in other comprehensive income 2362 2362

Losses gains included in earnings1521 6156 6138 18
Sold during the period 5300 5300

Balance at September 30 2009 $115436 $6138 $121574

uLosses gains are recorded in other expense income net within the consolidated statements of operations

2lncludes an unrealized loss of $2349 reclassified to earnings from other comprehensive loss

Level Level Level Total

$581642 $581642

121574 121574

6110 6110

Total assets $581642 6110 $121574 $709326

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities 9684 9684

Total liabilities 9684 9684

Amounts included in

Cash and cash equivalents $581642 $581642

Prepaid expenses and other current ossets 6110 6138 12248

Short-term investments 60994 60994

Long-term investments 54442 54442

Accrued expenses 9684 9684

Total $581642 $3574 $121574 $699642
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Property and Equipment

As of September 30 2009 and 2008 net property and equip

ment which includes assets under capital leases consisted of the

following

Property and equipment

Buildings

Capitalized software

Computer equipment

Telecommunications equipment

Furniture and equipment

Leasehold improvements

Total property and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization

Balance at end of year

As of September 30 2009 and 2008 assets under capital leases

were $108758 and $102764 respectively less accumulated

depreciation of $46530 and $37950 respectively

Long-lived assets with definite useful lives are depreciated or

amortized over their estimated useful lives and are tested for impair

ment whenever indicators of impairment arise

During the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company evaluated certain lang-lived assets for impairment Forthe

years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company

recorded zero $965 and $13645 respectively of non-cash charges

related to the impairment of capitalized software shown within

goodwill and asset impairment in the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations which were recorded as decrease to the

gross carrying value of the asset Fiscal 2008 impairment charges

were recorded within the HR BPO segment results Fiscal 2007

impairment charges were recorded within the HR BPO Benefits Out-

sourcing and Consulting segment results in the amounts of $9521

$3237 and $887 respectively The impairment charges were pri

marily due to lower than expected utilization of certain assets Fair

value was calculated using estimated discounted future cash flow

projections and also third-party valuation firm

For the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company recognized depreciation and amortization expense on its

property and equipment which includes assets under capital leases

of $113291 $117043 and $135700 respectively The Company

recognized $634 $1755 and $8166 of accelerated depreciation

related to the leased real estate restructuring activities during the

years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Refer to Note 15 for discussion on restructuring activities of the

Companys leased real estate

48380

46920

7443

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following is summary of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended September 30 2009 and 2008

Benefits

Out so icing

Balance at September 30 2007

Additions

Adjustment and reclassifications

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 148 31657

Balance at September 30 2008 88005 $276136

Additions 57974

Adjustment and reclassifications 12621 843

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 23026

Balance at September 30 2009 $311927

Additions adjustments and reclassifications of goodwill for the

years ended September 30 2009 and 2008 related to the following

acquisitions see Note for additional information on acquisitions

2009 Acquisition

The Company acquired the remaining shares of its former joint yen

ture BodeHewitt AG Co lG BodeHewitt during the third quar

ter of fiscal 2009 The preliminary purchase price allocation resulted

in the aggregate addition of $57339 to goodwill as of September

30 2009 which was assigned to the Consulting segment This

amount is reflected as an addition to goodwill during the
year

ended

September 30 2009 The Company will finalize the opening balance

sheet related to this acquisition during fiscal 2010

2008 Acquisitions

The Company acquired two Talent and Organization Consulting

businesses during fiscal 2008 and recorded preliminary aggregate

goodwill of $36859 to the Consulting segment This amount is

reflected as an addition to goodwill during the year ended Septem
ber 30 2008 The Company finalized the opening balance sheets

related to these acquisitions during fiscal 2009 and recorded

adjustments to goodwill of $649 during the year ended September

30 2009

The Company also acquired leaves management business dur

ing fiscal 2008 and recorded preliminary goodwill of $46920 to the

Benefits Outsourcing segment This amount is reflected as an addi

tion to goodwill during the year ended September 30 2008 The

2009 2008

89594

396845

290749

138690

153707

179842

1249427

865173

384254

93756

351048

289637

137175

164815

189907

1226338

840453

385885

Consulting Totol

$270934 $319314

36859 83779

7443
31509

$364141

57974

13464

22834

$412745

192

$100818
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Company finalized the opening balance sheet related to this acquisi

tion during fiscal 2009 and recorded adjustments to goodwill of

$12621 during the year ended September 30 2009

2007 Acquisitions

The Company acquired RealLife HR during fiscal 2007 and recorded

preliminary goodwill of $30859 to the Benefits Outsourcing seg

ment during that year The Company finalized the opening balance

sheet related to this acquisition during the fourth quarter of fiscal

2008 and recorded adjustments to goodwill of $7443 during the

year ended September 30 2008

Other

The Company recorded the additional purchase price of fiscal

2006 acquisition as an addition to Consulting goodwill during the

year ended September 30 2009 The purchase price was subject to

certain contingent payments held as restricted cash if the acquired

entity achieved specific operating targets The restricted cash was

paid out under the terms of an escrow agreement on October 30

2008 upon achievement of the targets The Company also recorded

adjustments and reclassifications af Consulting goodwill during

fiscal 2009 relating to adjustments to tax benefits relating to

prior-year acquisitions within the Consulting segment

The Company tests goodwill for impairment annually and when

ever indicators of impairment arise During the fourth quarter of fis

cal 2008 and 2009 the Company performed its annual impairment

review of goodwill This review resulted in no impairment of good

will during fiscal 2008 and 2009

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company performed

its annual impairment review of goodwill This review resulted in

non-cash impairment charge of $279843 related to the HR BPO

segment recorded as component of operating results in the accom

panying consolidated statements of operations due to reduced

growth expectations for the overall business partially due to

revised strategy The reduced growth expectations were driven by

reduction in the likely number of future engagements and reduced

contract value of each engagement as the Company focused on

identifying potential customers seeking more standardized set of

platforms and services The Company engaged third-party valua

tion firm to assist in determining the fair value of the reporting unit

The valuation was based on estimates of future cash flows devel

oped by management

The following is summary of intangible assets at September 30 2009 and 2008

September 30 2009 September 30 2008

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Trademarks and tradenames 5371 3910 1461 16380 $13726 2654

Core technology 48551 21310 27241 32999 15865 17134

Customer relationships 260664 97887 162777 274575 87541 187034

Total $314586 $123107 $191479 $323954 $117132 $206822

The decrease in the gross carrying amount of customer relationships

mastly relates to adjustments to the opening balance sheet related

to the fiscal 2008 acquisition of leaves management business and

the unfavorable impact of foreign currency
translation adjustments

This was partially offset by the preliminary purchase price allocation

of the third quarter BodeHewitt acquisition The increase in the

grass carrying amount of core technology is mostly due to adjust

ments to the opening balance sheet related to the fiscal 2008 acqui

sition of leaves management business recorded in the Benefits

Outsourcing segment The decrease in the gross carrying amount of

trademarks and tradenames is mostly due to fully amortized trade-

name that was removed from both the gross carrying and accumu

lated amortization amounts during the second quarter of fiscal

2009 in addition to the unfavorable impact of foreign currency

translation adjustments

Trademarks and tradenames 1532 780 1895

Core technology 3955 3293 4271

Customer relationships 14858 25808 27492

Total $20345 $29881 $33658

Amortization expense
related to definite-lived intangible assets

for the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 was as

follows

2009 2008 2007
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Applying current foreign exchange rates estimated amortization

expense related to intangible assets with definite lives at September

30 2009 for each of the years in the five-year period ending

September 30 2014 and thereafter is projected to be as follows

Toal

Fiscal year ending

2010 $21866

2011 21174

2012 20796

2013 20727

2014 20602

2015 and thereafter 86314

Total $191479

As of September 30 2009 the weighted average remaining useful

life of trademarks and tradenames care technology and customer

relationships is years years and 13 years respectively

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized aver

their estimated useful lives and are tested for impairment whenever

indicators of impairment arise

During the
years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company evaluated certain intangible assets related to the HR BPO

segment for impairment The Company recorded non-cash charges

in the HR BPO segment results of $207 and $769 in 2009 and 2008

respectively shown within goodwill and asset impairment in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations which were

recorded as decrease to the gross carrying value of the asset The

impairment charges related to customer relationships and were pri

marily due to lower than expected future cash flows Fair value Was

determined using an estimated discounted cash flow analysis

For the year ended September 30 2007 the Company recorded

$20879 of non-cash charges in the HR BPO segment results and

$4395 of non-cash charges in the Benefits Outsourcing results

shown within goodwill and asset impairment in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations which were recorded as

decrease to the gross carrying value of the assets The impairment

charge in the HR BPO segment primarily related to the impairment of

core technology of $18501 due to lower than expected utilization

of the assets and also customer relationships of $2028 primarily

due to lower than expected future cash flows The impairment

charge in the Benefits Outsourcing segment primarily related to the

impairment of customer relationships of $3957 attributable to

lower than expected future cash flows Fair value was determined

using an estimated discounted cash flow analysis and third-party

valuation firm

10 Other Non-Current Assets Net

As of September 30 2009 and 2008 other non-current assets net

consisted of the following

Other non-current assets net

The Company has several prepaid long-term contracts for mainte

nance on computer software systems Services and expense related

to these lang-term prepaid maintenance contracts are received and

recognized over the contractual period In connection with fiscal

2008 acquisition the Company recorded prepaid compensation

related to service agreements

Investments in less than 50%-owned affiliated companies over

which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence

but lacks control are accounted for using the equity method of

accounting The Company acquired the remaining interests of its

joint venture BodeHewitt during fiscal 2009 and as result has

consolidated the assets and liabilities of BodeHewitt into the

Companys balance sheet reducing the equity method investment

recorded in other non-current assets net

11 Short-Term Debt

The Company did not have any short-term debt outstanding as of

September 30 2009 In March 2009 the Company closed on the

sale of the net assets relating to its HR BPO mobility services busi

ness which included an unsecured line of credit relating to the oper

ations of this business Refer to Note 4for additional information on

divestitures Short-term debt outstanding as of September 30 2008

was $17602 and consisted of borrowings an unsecured lines of

credit relating to the HR BPO mobility services business

Unsecured Lines of Credit

As part of the 2005 merger with Exult the Company assumed

domestic unsecured revolving line of credit facility On September

26 2007 the Company replaced the facility with an unsecured

revolving line of credit facility which provided for borrowings up to

$19500 and accrued interest at LIBOR plus 3060 basis points or

base rate On August 2008 the Company signed new agreement

and extended the facility until May 24 2010 Borrowings under the

new facility accrued interest at LIBOR plus 100 basis points or

base rate In March 2009 the Company closed on the sole of the net

assets relating to its HR BPO mobility services business which

included this facility As result the Company did not have this facil

ity at September 30 2009 The Company hod borrowings of

$17602 and accrued interest at weighted average rate of 45% at

September 30 2008 under this facility

2009 2008

Other non-current assets net

Income tax receivable

Prepaid long-term service contracts

Investments in affiliated companies

Long-term note receivable net

Prepaid pension assets

Lang-term unbilled work in process

$13118

13065

2978

1300

930

14L4

$31535

$17739

18272

19394

2901

5403

53

$63762
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On May 23 2005 the Company entered into five-year credit

facility with six-bank syndicate that provides for borrowings and

letters of credit up to $200000 Borrowings under this facility

accrued interest at LIBOR plus 3060 basis points or the prime rate

at the Companys option Borrowings were repayable at expiration

of the facility on May 23 2010 and quarterly facility fees ranging

from 7.515 basis points are charged on the average daily commit

ment under the facility On July 30 2008 this facility was amended

to change the Administrative Agent and in September 2008 the

number of banks participating in this credit facility increased to

seven At September 30 2009 and 2008 there were no borrowings

outstanding against this facility and the letters of credit secured by

this facility were $10866 and $10500 respectively

On October 2009 subsequent to the year ended September 30

2009 the Company entered into three-year $250000 credit facil

ity with multi-bank syndicate This credit facility contains

$25000 sub-limit for the issuance of letters of credit This credit

facility replaces the previous $200000 five-year credit facility Bor

rowings under this facility accrue interest at LIBOR plus 200300

basis points or base rate plus 100200 basis points Borrowings

are repayable at expiration of the facility on October 2012 and

quarterly commitment fees ranging from 3050 basis points are

charged under the credit facility The outstanding letters of credit of

$10366 under the current credit facility were transferred to this

new credit facility in fiscal 2010

Hewitt Bacon Woodrow Ltd the Companys U.K subsidiary has

an unsecured British pound sterling line of credit In July 2005 the

line of credit was amended and extended to allow for borrowings up

to 5000 until the expiration of the facility on July 31 2006 which

has been extended several times currently through September 30

2010 The interest rate forthis line of credit is the U.K base rate plus

180 basis points As of September 30 2009 and 2008 the interest

rates on the line of credit were 2.3% and 7.4% respectively and

there was no outstanding balance at either date

The Company has contract with lender to guarantee borrow

ings of its subsidiaries up to $20500 in multiple currency loans and

letters of credit as well as bank guarantees up to $2875 in multiple

currencies There is no fixed termination date on this contract This

contract allows the Companys foreign subsidiaries to secure financ

ing at rates based on the Companys creditworthiness The contract

provides for borrowings at LIBOR plus 75 basis points and is

payable upon demand As of September 30 2009 and 2008 there

were no borrowings outstanding under this contract and bank guar

antees were $2875 and $2715 respectively

The Company has overdraft facilities and letters of credit of

$5824 available across Europe There are no fixed termination

dates for these contracts As of September 30 2009 and 2008

there were no borrowings outstanding against these facilities and

letters of credit secured under these facilities were $847 and zero

respectively

12 Debt

Debt at September 30 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following

2009 2008

Unsecured senior term loon $270000 $270000

Unsecured senior term notes 276000 283000

Unsecured convertible senior term notes 110000

Term loan credit facility 26631 38449

Capital lease obligations 82161 81649

Other foreign debt 51 86

Subtotal 651e843 783184

Current portion of lang-term debt

and capital lease obligations 36282 133002

Debt and capital lease obligations

less current portion $618561 $650182

The principal portion of long-term debt excluding capital lease

obligations at September 30 2009 becomes due as follows

Fiscal year ending

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015 and thereafter

Total

Total

Various debt agreements call for the maintenance of specified finan

cial ratios among other restrictions At September 30 2009 and

2008 the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants

Unsecured Senior Term Loan

On August 2008 the Company entered into loan agreement that

provides for senior unsecured term loan in the amount of

$270000 the Term Loan The Term Loan initially bears interest

at margin of 150 basis points over LIBOR which will change

depending on the leverage ratio of the Company The Term Loan

matures on August 2013 without amortization The Company has

the option to prepay the Term Loan in whole or in part at any time

without penalty subject to certain conditions The laan agreement

includes leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio covenants The

Company is exposed to interest rate risk from this long-term vari

able rate debt The Company uses cash flow hedges to hedge future

interest payments on the Term Loan The Company entered into

interest rate swaps to partially convert this variable rate exposure

into fixed rate As of March 31 2009 the Company had swapped

$270000 of the Term Loan for the first three years $185000 for

the fourth year and $100000 for the fifth year Only the variable

24632

29628

14618

273804

230000

$572682
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LIBOR piece of the Term Loan was swapped to fixed rate These con

tracts protect against the risk that the eventual cash flows resulting

from such transactions will be adversely affected by changes in

interest rates As of September 30 2009 these hedges are still in

place Refer to Note for additional information on derivative

instruments

Unsecured Senior Term Notes

On August 21 2008 the Company issued and sold $230000 aggre

gate principal amount of privately placed senior unsecured notes

the Notes consisting of $175000 of 6.57% Series Senior

Notes due August 21 2015 and $55000 of 6.98% Series Sen

ior Notes due August 21 2018 Interest is payable semi-annually in

arrears Subject to certain conditions the Company may at its

option prepay all or part of the Notes at any time with make-whole

adjustment The note purchase agreement includes leverage ratio

and interest coverage ratio covenants In the event ofa default by

the Company under the note purchase agreement any outstanding

obligations under the note purchase agreement may become due

and payable immediately

The Company also has outstanding unsecured senior term notes in

the amount of $46000 issued between March 30 2000 and October

16 2000 Subject to certain conditions the Company may at its option

prepay all or part of the notes at any time with make-whole adjust

ment These notes were issued to various financial institutions The

terms and balances of the unsecured senior term notes are as follows

8.08%

6.5 7%

6.98%

21000 28000

175000 175000

55000 55000

$276000 $283000

Unsecured Convertible Senior Term Notes

In connection with the Companys merger with Exult the Company

became obligated for $110000 aggregate principal amount of

2.50% Convertible Senior Notes due October 2010 the Convert

ible Notes On October 2008 the majority of the holders of the

Convertible Notes exercised their option requiring Hewitt to repur

chase $109800 of the $110000 notes Hewitt paid the principal

amount of $109800 plus accrued interest on October 2008 The

Company redeemed the remaining principal amount of $200 piLls

accrued interest on December 31 2008 As of September 30 2008

the carrying value on the notes was $110000

Term Loan Credit Facility

On December 22 2004 Hewitt Bacon Woodrow Ltd entered into

6000 term loan credit facility agreement which was repayable in

24 quarterly installments through December 2010 and accrues

interest at LIBOR plus 80 basis points On March 26 2008 the Com

pany replaced the term loan credit facility agreement and increased

the amount to 23750 which is repayable in 20 quarterly install

ments through March 26 2013 and accrues interest at LIBOR pILls

50 basis points At September 30 2009 and 2008 the outstanding

balance of the term loan was 16625 or $26631 and 21375 or

$38449 respectively and accrued interest at 1.2% and 6.6%

respectively

Terms

Issued July 2000 repayable on June 30 2010

Issued on October 16 2000 repayable on October 15 2010

Issued on March 30 2000 repayable in five annual installments

beginning March 2008 through March 2012

Issued on August 21 2008 repayable on August 21 2015

Issued on August 21 2008 repayable on August 21 2018

Total

its rest

Rote

8.11%

7.90%

Balance at

Issuance

$10000

15000

35000

175000

55000

$290000

September 30 September 30

2009 2008

10000 $10000

15000 15000

Other Foreign Debt

Other foreign debt outstanding at September 30 2009 and 2008

totaled $51 and $86 respectively pursuant to local banking

relationships

13 Lease Agreements

The Company has obligations under long-term non-cancelable lease

agreements principally for office space furniture and equipment

with terms ranging from one to twenty years At September 30 2009

and 2008 all leases were with third-parties

Capital Leases

Capital lease obligations at September 30 2009 and 2008

consisted of the following

2009 2008

Building capital leases $62383 $67527

Computer and telecommunications

equipment capital leases

Current portion

Capital lease obligations

less current portion

19778 14122

82161 81649

11650 7424

$70511 $74225
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The following is schedule of minimum future rental payments

required as of September 30 2009 under capitol leases which have

an initial or remaining non-cancelable lease term in excess of one

year

Principal Interest Total

Fiscal year ending

2010 $11650 $5247 $16897

2011 10437 4313 14750

2012 11073 3686 14759

2013 11879 3013 14892

2014 10376 2318 12694

2015 and thereafter 26746 2727 29473

Total minimum

lease payments $82161 $21304 $103465

Operating Leases

The Company also has various third-party operating leases for office

space furniture and equipment with terms ranging from one to

twenty years The Company has various office leases that grant

free rent period and have escalating rents Certain office leases

include landlord incentives for leasehold improvements Landlord

incentives are recognized as reduction to rental expense over the

term of the lease The accompanying consolidated statements of

operations include rent expense on straight-line basis recognized

over the term of the leases The difference between straight-line

basis rent and the amount paid has been recorded as accrued lease

obligations within accrued expenses in the consolidated balance

sheets

The following is schedule of minimum future rental commit

ments as of September 30 2009 under operating leases with an

initial or remaining non-cancelable lease term in excess of one year

Building Capital Leases

The Norwalk Connecticut and Newport Beach California capital

leases are payable in monthly installments at 7.3% interest and

expire in April 2017 and May 2017 respectively The leases provide

for stepped rents over the lease term with the option for two renewal

terms of five years each The capitalized leases and the related capi

tal lease obligations were recorded at lease inception and the capi

talized lease assets are being amortized over the remaining lease

term on straight-line basis The terms of the Norwalk lease also

provide the Company with right of first refusal if the landlord

receives an offer for the sale of the building In April 2007 the Com

pany
entered into sublease agreement for the Norwalk lease Mini

mum sublease rentals expected to be received in the future underthe

sublease are $21276 at September 30 2009

Computer and Telecommunications Equipment Capital Leases

During fiscal 2009 the Company entered into capitalized lease

agreement in the amount of $5994 relating to computer hardware

equipment The agreement calls for payments over five years in

monthly installments at an interest rate of 2.8% beginning in

October 2009

During fiscal 2008 the Company entered into capitalized lease

agreement in the amount of $13278 relating to voice over internet

protocol equipment The Company is currently finalizing the terms of

the lease which is expected to include payments over five years in

monthly installments at an interest rate of 3.5% The Company

expects to make payments on this lease starting in the first quarter

of fiscal 2010

The Companys computer and other telecommunications equip

ment installment notes and capitalized leases are secured by the

related equipment and are typically payable over three to five years

in monthly or quarterly installments at an interest rate of 5.0%

Total

Fiscal year ending

2010 $89538

2011 82620

2012 75278

2013 69234

2014 62692

2015 and thereafter 192031

Total minimum lease payments 571393

Less_anticipated_future
sublease receipts 25349

Total minimum lease payments

less anticipated future sublease receipts $546044

Total rental expense for operating leases amounted to $86027

$129476 and $104810 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Included in rental expense
for the

years
ended September 30 2009

2008 and 2007 are $7739 $40688 and $17777 respectively

related to the Companys leased real estate restructuring activities

Refer to Note 15 for discussion on restructuring activities of the

Companys leased real estate

14 Severance Accrual

As of September 30 2009 the Company had estimated its sever

ance obligations to be $26344 in accordance with FASB ASC 712

Compensation-Nonretirement Post Employment Benefits The Com

panys severance policy provides that the affected employees are

entitled to receive an amount of severance pay based on the

employees length of service current employment status and level

and benefits elections For certain affected employees outside of the

U.S the amount of severance is based upon the requirements of

local regulations The Companys severance policy provides in most
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cases for salary continuation payments rather than lump sum termi

nation payments The Company recorded adjustments of $6057

during the year ended September 30 2009 primarily related to the

refinement of estimates the redeployment of associates to other

positions and the impacts of foreign currency translation adjust

ments The Company recorded adjustments of $4007 during the

year ended September 30 2008 primarily related to higher than

expected attrition and redeployment of associates to other posi

tions in addition to refinement of estimates

The following table summarizes the activity in the severance

accrual for the years ended September 30 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year 27859 10661

Additions 34793 31630

Payments 30251 10425
Adjustments 6057 4007

Balance at end of year 26344 27859

The additions and adjustments were recorded in compensation and

related expenses within the consolidated statements of operations

The Company anticipates that the majority of the remaining accrual

will be paid out by the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2010 with

the balance paid out by the end of fiscal 2010 based on the last date

of potential salary continuation

15 Restructuring Activities

In conjunction with an ongoing review of the Companys leased real

estate portfolio during the third quarter of fiscal 2007 the Com

pany announced its intention to consolidate facilities and in some

cases exit certain properties During the fourth quarter of fiscal

2007 and throughout fiscal 2008 the Company recorded expense of

$58465 related to the exit and consolidation of certain facilities in

both the U.S and international locations The charges consisted of

$65503 for the recognition of the fair value of lease vacancy obliga

tions and lease termination charges and the reversal of $364 of pre

paid rent This was offset by the reversal of accrued rent of $7402
The net costs were recorded in other operating expenses within the

consolidated statements of operations and charged to the Benefits

Outsourcing HR BPO and Consulting segments in the amounts of

$27956 $15422 and $5537 respectively $9550 was recorded

to shared services and was not allocated to the segments

During fiscal 2009 the Company updated estimated sublease

rental assumptions initially used to determine the fair value of the

liabilities incurred to exit certain facilities as discussed above

These assumptions were updated to reflect current market condi

tions relating to the commercial real estate rental market in the U.S

and Europe As result the Company recorded adjustments to

increase the restructuring reserve by $8998 These additional costs

were recorded in other operating expenses within the consolidated

statements of operations and charged to the Benefits Outsourcing

HR BPO and Consulting segments in the amounts of $4159 $3031

and $280 respectively $1528 was recorded to shared services and

was not allocated to the segments

Additionally during fiscal 2009 the Company recorded expense

of $7739 related to the exit and consolidation of facilities in both

the U.S and international locations The charge consisted of $4821

for the recognition of the fair values of lease vacancy obligations

and $3171 of lease cancellation penalties incurred when the Corn-

pony notified the landlords of its intent to terminate the lease agree

ments This was offset by the reversal of accrued rent of $253 The

cost was recorded in other operating expense within the consoli

dated statements of operations and charged to the Consulting Ben

efits Outsourcing and HR BPO segments in the amounts of $4172

$2990 and $552 respectively $25 was recorded to shared serv

ices and was not allocated to the segments

The following table summarizes the activity in the restructuring

reserves for the
years ended September 30 2009 and 2008

Balance at beginning of year 51203 20887

Additions 7992 43854

Payments net 12810 13504
Adjustments 5822 34
Balance at end of year 52207 51203

The Company recorded an adjustment of $5822 during the year

ended September 30 2009 primarily related to the revision of sub

lease rental assumptions discussed above Also included in adjust

ments are the accretion of fair value and the effect of foreign

currency translation

The Company anticipates that the remaining accrual will be paid

out by fiscal 2018 based on the longest term remaining on the Com

panys leased real estate

In connection with the fiscal 2008 acquisition of Talent and

Organization Consulting business in the United lingdom the Corn-

pony formulated facility exit strategies The Company finalized the

opening balance sheet related to this acquisition during the second

quarter of fiscal 2009 and determined that its liability for costs

required to exit the property acquired in this acquisition was 1519
$2174 at March 31 2009 The accrued obligation was $1163 as

of September 30 2009 and reflected payments made to date and

the impact of foreign currency translation Lease termination costs

are expected to be paid by March 2012

In connection with the fiscal 2008 acquisition of Benefits Out

sourcing leaves management business the Company formulated

facility exit strategies The Company recorded $1958 of estimated

liabilities for costs required to exit the properties acquired in this

acquisition which was recorded to goodwill as part of purchase

accounting The Company finalized the opening balance sheet

related to this acquisition during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009

The accrued obligation was $1726 as of September 30 2009

Lease termination costs are expected to be paid by September 2010

2009 2008
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16 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share EPS is calculated by dividing net

income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock

outstanding Diluted EPS includes the components of basic EPS and

also gives effect to dilutive common stock equivalents Treasury

stock is not considered outstanding for either basic or diluted EPS as

weighted from the date the shares were placed into treasury For

purposes of calculating basic and diluted vested restricted

stock awards are considered outstanding Under the treasury stock

method diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if

securities or other instruments that are convertible into common

stock were exercised or could result in the issuance of common

stock Potentially dilutive common stock equivalents include

unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units and unexercised

stock options that are in-the-money and in fiscal 2007 and 2008

unexercised warrants that are in-the-money and outstanding con

vertible debt securities which would have dilutive effect if

converted from debt to common stock Restricted stock awards

generally vest 25 percent at each fiscal year end following the

grant date and are not considered outstanding in basic until the

vesting date

The following table presents computations of basic and diluted in accordance with U.S GAAP

Year Ended September 30

During fiscal 2007 the Company reported consolidated net loss

As result unvested restricted stock awards and unexercised in-the-

money stock options were antidilutive for this year and were not

included in the computation of diluted weighted average shares

Debt securities convertible into 1870748 weighted average

shares of Class common stock were outstanding in the years ended

September 30 2008 and 2007 but were not included in the compu
tation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of including

the convertible debt securities would be antidilutive Refer to Note

12 for additional information on the Companys convertible debt

Warrants to purchase 200000 weighted average shares of Class

common stock were outstanding in the years ended September 30
2008 and 2007 but were not included in the computation of diluted

earnings per share for the year ended 2007 because the exercise

price of the warrants which is formula-based with minimum price

of $37.75 per share was greater than the average market price of

the Class common stock Of the outstanding stock options as of

September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 740614 54244 and

888494 weighted average shares for each year respectively were

not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share

because the options were not in-the-money

17 Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Employee 401k and Profit Sharing Plan

The Company has qualified 401k and profit sharing plan for its

eligible employees Under the plan Hewitt makes annual contribu

tions equal to percentage of participants total cash compensation

and may make additional contributions in accordance with the

terms of the plan Additionally employees may make contributions

in accordance with the terms of the plan with portion of those con

tributions matched by the Company In 2009 2008 and 2007 profit

sharing plan and Company match contribution expenses were

$58765 $60184 and $58179 respectively

Defined Benefit Plans

Through various acquisitions the Company has defined benefit pen-

Sian plans the largest of which was closed to new entrants in 1998

providing retirement benefits to eligible employees The Company

also has other smaller defined benefit pension plans to provide

benefits to eligible employees It is the Companys policy to fund

these defined benefit plans in accordance with local practice and

legislation

2009 2008 2007

Net income loss as reported $265125 $188142 $175080

Weighted average outstanding sharesbasic 93400271 98791739 107866281

Incremental effect of dilutive common stock equivalents

Unvested restricted stock awards 904475 1303573

Unexercised stock options 1085280 1872704

Unexercised warrants 2305

Weighted average outstanding sharesdiluted 95390026 101970321 107866281

Earnings loss per sharebasic 2.84 1.90 1.62

Earnings loss per sharediluted 2.78 1.85 1.62
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Health Care Plans

The Company provides health benefits for retired U.S and Canadian

employees and certain dependents when those employees become

eligible for these benefits by satisfying plan provisions which

include certain age and service requirements The health benefit

plans are contributory and contributions are reviewed annually and

adjusted as appropriate These plans contain other cost-sharing fea

tures such as deductibles and coinsurance The Company does not

pre-fund these plans and has the right to modify or terminate any of

these plans in the future

As discussed in Note effective September 30 2009 the Com

pany changed the measurement dote for its defined benefit and

health care plans benefit obligations and plan assets to September

30 as required by FASB ASC 715 CompensationRetirementBene

fits formerly SFAS No 158 See Note for the incremental effects

of the change in measurement date on the Companys consolidated

balance sheet

The following tables provide reconciliation of the changes in the

defined benefit and health care plans benefit obligations and fair

value of assets for the
years

ended September 30 2009 and 2008

and statement of funded status as of September 30 2009 and 2008

Pension Benefits Health Benefits

2009 2008 2009 2008

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial losses gains

Benefit payments

Acquisition 2705

Curtailments and settlements net 83

Plan amendments 648

Adoption of FASB ASC 715 measurement date provision 5535

Participant contributions 1540 1232

Changes in
foreign_exchange

rates 11552 18047

Benefit obligation end of year $247426 $226855

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year $182382 $193589

Actual return on plan assets 3896 12222

Company contributions 35214 18353 785 831

Participant contributions 1540 1232

Benefit payments 8425 5512 785 831

Adoption of FASB ASC 715 measurement date provisiont1 2849

Changes_in_foreign exchange rates 7816 13058

Fairvalueofplanassetsendofyear $209640 $182382

Reconciliation of Accrued Obligation and Total Amount Recognized

Unfunded statust2t 37786 44473 $15770 $12720

Net amount recognized end of
year

37786 44473 $15770 $12720

Amounts Recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Pretax

Prior service cost 139 634 479 19

Net actuarial loss 49412 28682 5002 3071

Transition obligation

Total 49273 29316 5482 3091

$226855

9817

11414

10102

8425

$211633

12527

11146

13876

5512

$13713
199

855

1216
831

12720

170

878

2063

785

462

262

15770 $12720

This represents the impact of the change in measurement date to September 30 2009 in accordance with FASB ASC 715 See Nate for details and the net impact of the

measurement date provision

7Fair value of assets less praiected benefit obligation shown in the preceding tables
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The amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as of September 302009 and 2008 consisted of

Relating to the pension plans the estimated net loss gain service

cost and transition obligation that will be amortized from sharehold

ers equity into pension cost in fiscal 2010 are $1483 $9 and

zero respectively Related amounts amortized in fiscal 2009

respectively were $554 $61 and zero

Relating to the health benefit plans the estimated net loss prior

service cost and transition obligation that will be amortized from

shareholders equity into pension cost in fiscal 2010 are $244 $44

and zero respectively Related amounts amortized in fiscal 2009

respectively were $106 $2 and zero

The accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plans was

$225443 and $200265 as of September 30 2009 and 2008

respectively

The assumptions used in the measurement of the benefit obligations at September 30 2009 and June 302008 are as follows

Weighted average assumptions

Discount rate

Rote of compensation increase

The assumptions used in the measurement of the net benefit costs for the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 areas follows

Weighted average assumptions

Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets

Rate of compensation increase

The health plans provide flat dollar credits based on years of service

and age at retirement Service for determining credits was frozen as

of December 31 2005 The amendment to the plan resulted in

$3153 decrease $2728 decrease to the unrecognized prior serv

ice cost and $425 decrease to the unrecognized transition obliga

tion in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation during

fiscal 2006 There is small group of grandfathered retirees who

receive postretirement medical coverage at percentage of cost

The liabilities for these retirees are valued assuming 8.5% health

care cost trend rate for 2009 The rate was assumed to decrease

gradually to 6.0% in 2014 and remain at that level thereafter

The effect ofa one percentage pointincreose or decrease in the

assumed health care cost trend rates is not material to total service

and interest costs and the postretirement benefit obligation

Pension Benefits Health Benefits

2007 2009 2008 2007

The Companys pension plan weighted average asset allocations

at September 30 2009 and 2008 by asset category were as follows

Asset category 2009

The investment objectives for the pension plan assets are to gener

ate returns that will enable the plans to meet their future obligations

The strategies balance the requirement to generate returns through

2009 2008

Other non-current assets net 930 3278

Accrued expenses 398 4884
Other non-current liabilities 38318 42867

Net amount recognized $37786 $44473

Pension Benefits Health Benefits

2009 2008

719
15051

$15770

831
11889

12720

Pension Benefits Health Benefits

2009 2008 2009 2008

4.88% 5.71% 5.90% 7.10%

3.28% 4.57% N/A N/A

2009 2008

5.71% 535% 4.85% 7.10% 6.40% 6.00%

6.09% 6.20% 5.77% N/A N/A N/A

4.57% 4J3% 3.89% N/A N/A N/A

Equity securities

Debt securities

Real estate

Other

Total

2008

38.15% 43.41%

52.66 48.74

3.21 3.75

5.98 4.10

100.00% 100.00%
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investments such as equity securities with the need to control risk

through less volatile assets such as fixed income securities while also

meeting local regulations Approximately 90% of the Companys

plan assets relate to the Companys pension plans in the United

Kingdom and Switzerland In the United lingdom the plan assets

are managed in two separate portfolios an equity portfolio and

bond portfolio The strategy is to invest 56% and 44% of the plan

assets in equity securities and debt securities respectively The total

return is tracked to the relevant market index within specified toler

ances and after allowance for withholding tax where applicable for

each of the funds in which the assets are invested The plan assets

for the Switzerland plan are managed in accordance with the laws in

Switzerland Within the scope of the Swiss laws the strategy targets

equity securities of 35%45% debt securities of 35%65% real

estate investments of 5%15% and other investments of 0%5%
The following benefit payments which reflect expected future

service are expected to be paid as follows

Pension Health

Benefits Benefits

2010 $5913 718

2011 5944 717

2012 711

2013 715

2014 775

Years 2015 through 2018

The components of net periodic benefit costs for the three years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 were as follows

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Lass gain recognized in the
year

Curtailment
expense

Amortization of

Unrecognized prior service cost

Unrecognized lass

Net periodic benefit cost

2009

9817

111e14

10851i

82

106

$1156

172 246

$1228 $1255

The Company presently anticipates contributing approximately

$12300 to fund its pension plans and $720 to fund its health bene

fit plans in fiscal 2010 The Company does not expect any plan

assets to be returned to the Company during fiscal 2010

18 Share-Based Compensation Plans

During the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company recorded pretax share-based compensation expense of

$54329 $48345 and $40937 respectively related to the Com

panys stock options restricted stock restricted stock units and per

formance share units During fiscal 2007 the Company reduced

share-based compensation expense by $4505 related to adjustments

in the forfeiture rate used to record share-based compensation

For the years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 the

excess tax benefits of $7002 $10227 and $4912 respectively

were recorded as cash flows from financing activities in the consoli

dated statement of cash flows The total compensation cost related

to non-vested restricted stock and stock option awards not yet

recognized as of September 30 2009 was approximately $67486

which is expected to be recognized aver weighted average period

of 2.3 years

Under the Companys Global Stock and Incentive Compensation

Plan the Plan which was adopted in fiscal 2002 and is adminis

tered by the Compensation and Leadership Committee the Com
mittee of the Companys Board of Directors employees and

directors may receive awards of stock options stock appreciation

rights restricted stock restricted stock units performance shares

performance share units and cash-based awards employees can

also receive incentive stock options The Plan was amended in Janu

ary 2008 to increase the number of shares of Class common stock

authorized and reserved for issuance by 7000000 shares As of

September 30 2009 only restricted stock restricted stock units

performance share units and stock options have been granted

total of 32000000 shares of Class common stock have been

reserved for issuance under the Plan As of September 30 2009

there were 5551885 shares available for grant under the Plan

6418

6526

7478

45694

Pension Benefits

4661

Health Benefits

2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

$12527 $12078 170 199 155

11146 9293 878 855 852

12002 9090
70 322

61 86 92

554 27 229

$11074 $11660 $12924
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Performance share units PSUs are intended to provide an incen

tive for achieving specific performance objectives over defined

period PSUs represent an obligation of the Company to deliver

number of shares ranging from zero to 200% of the initial number of

units granted depending on performance against objective pre

established financial metrics at the end of the performance period

The Company believes it is probable that such goals will be achieved

for shares which vest upon meeting certain financial performance

conditions and these goals are evaluated quarterly If such goals

are not met or it is probable the goals will not be met no compensa

tion cost is recognized and any recognized compensation cost is

reversed

During fiscal 2009 1.97200 PSUs were granted to certain Hewitt

leadership which are included in the restricted stock unit informa

tion disclosed above The financial metrics for these grants are

based on Hewitts corporate performance in fiscal 2009 and are cal

culated to be paid out at rate of 104% These grants are scheduled

to vest in one-third increments on September 30 2009 2010 and

2011 During fiscal 2008 112900 PSUs were granted to certain

Hewitt leadership which are included in the restricted stock unit

information disclosed above The financial metrics for these grants

were based on Hewitts corporate performance in fiscal 2008 and

are to be paid out at rate of 195% These grants are scheduled to

vest in one-third increments on September 30 2008 2009 and

2010 During fiscal 2007 137000 PSUs were granted to certain

Hewitt leadership which are included in the restricted stock unit

information disclosed above The financial metrics for these grants

were based on Hewitts fiscal 2007 corporate performance and are

to be paid out at rate of 180% The fiscal 2007 grants are sched

uled to cliff vest on September 30 2010

Stock Options

The Committee may grant both incentive stock options and stock

options to purchase shares of Class common stock Subject to the

terms and provisions of the Plan options maybe granted to partici

pants as determined by the Committee provided that incentive

stock options may not be granted to non-employee directors The

option price is determined by the Committee provided that for

options issued to participants in the U.S the option price may not be

less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares on the date the

option is granted and no option may be exercisable laterthan the

tenth anniversary of its grant The stock options generally vest in

equal annual installments over period of four years

The fair value used to determine compensation expense for the

years ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 was estimated at

the date of grant using Black-Scholes option pricing model The fol

lowing table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used

to determine fair value for options granted during the years ended

September 30 2009 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007

Expected volatility 29.30% 26.61% 28.15%

Risk-free interest rate 2.13% 3.83% 4.42%

Expected life in years 6.17 6.03 6.23

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity during 2009 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007

Weighted- weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Restricted Grant Date Restricted Grant Date Restricted Grant Date

Stock FairValue Stack FairValue Stack Fair Value

Outstanding at beginning of fiscal year 315921 $26.94 1190808 $25.45 2076201 $26.00

Vested 237583 27.21 781989 24.66 603153 26.89

Forfeited 78338 26.10 92898 27.11 282240 26.41

Outstanding at end of fiscal year 315921 $26.94 1190808 $25.45

The following table summarizes restricted stock units activity during 2009 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007

weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Restricted Grant Date Restricted Grant Date Restricted Grant Date

Stack Units Fair Value Stack Units Fair Value Stock Units Fair Value

Outstanding at beginning of fiscal year 2263986 $31.36 1945014 $25.72 294657 $25.56

Granted 2109868 27.24 1623680 36.75 2591352 25.59

Vested 1599075 29.12 971149 29.84 625167 25.20

Forfeited 354947 30.15 333559 29.14 315828 25.50

Outstanding at end of fiscal year 2419832 $29.42 2263986 $31.36 1945014 $25.72
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The Company uses the simplified method to determine the expected

life assumption for all of its options The Company continues to use

the simplified method as it does not believe that it has sufficient

historical exercise data to provide reasonable basis upon which

to estimate expected life due to the limited time its equity shares

hove been publicly traded

The following table summarizes stock option activity during 2009 2008 and 2007

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended

September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 based upon
the average mar

ket price during the period was approximately $8065 $28265

and $18027 respectively

19 Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in disputes arising in the ordinary course of

its business relating to outsourcing or consulting agreements pro

fessional liability claims vendors or service providers or employ

ment claims The Company is also routinely audited and subject to

inquiries by governmental and regulatory agencies Management

considers such factors as the probability of an unfovorable outcome

and the ability to make reasonable estimate of the amount of loss

and records provision with respect to claim suit investigation or

proceeding when it is probable that liability has been incurred and

the amount of the loss can reasonably be estimated If the reason

able estimate of probable lass is range of outcomes and no

amount within the range is better estimate than another the mini

mum amount in the range is accrued If loss is not probable or

probable loss cannot be reasonably estimated no liability is

recorded Insurance and other recoveries of book losses are sepa

rately evaluated and recognized only if such recoveries are also

probable and reasonably estimable

During the year ended September 30 2009 the Company

recorded net charges of approximately $8.0 million related to on

going disputes and settlements

During the third quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company settled its

lawsuit with Philips Electronics UlK Limited regarding claim that

the Company failed to properly value certain benefits in connection

with actuarial services provided from 1995 to 2000 The Company

paid the settlement in the third quarter of fiscal 2009 Certain of the

Companys professional liability insurers have denied $20 million of

insurance coverage relating to this matter The Company disputes

the position taken by the insurance carriers that have denied cov

erage and the Company is litigating its coverage positions and

believes substantial recovery is probable

The Company does not believe that any unresolved dispute will

have material adverse effect on its financial condition or results of

operation However litigation in general and the outcome of any

2009 2008 2007

Weig hted-Average Weig hted-Ave rage Weig hted-Average

Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of fiscal year 6283927 $25.68 7611095 $24.06 9664292 $23.69

Granted 1098790 26.49 772620 37.53 937650 25.66

Exercised 866871 23.13 1847653 23.61 2377618 22.78

Forfeited 124710 30.79 199426 29.65 197847 24.95

Expired 92815 27.90 52709 23.69 415382 25.79

Outstanding at end of fiscal year 6298321 $26.04 6283927 $25.68 7611095 $24.06

Exercisable options at end of fiscal year 4969290 $25.27 5271903 $24.53 6758976 $23.94

The weighted average estimated fair value of employee stock at exercise prices equal to the current fair market value of the under-

options granted during 2009 2008 and 2007 was $8.80 $12.81 lying stock on the grant date

and $9.74 per share respectively These stock options were granted

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at September 30 2009

Outstanding Options Exeo iscible Options

Number Weighted-Average Aggregate Weighted-Average Number Weighted-Average Aggregate

Summary price range groupings Outstanding Exercise Price Intrinsic Value Term Years Outstanding Exercise Price Intrinsic Value

$19.00 895943 $19.00 $15616 2.7 895943 $19.00 $15616

$19.01$25.00 1679753 23.80 21208 4.2 1619887 23.84 20392

$25.01$30.O0 3016708 26.80 29060 6.7 2073377 27.00 19555

$30.O1$40.00 705917 37.02 336 7.9 380083 36.65 273

6298321 $26.04 $66220 5.6 4969290 $25.27 $55836
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matter in particular cannot be predicted with certainty An unfavor- contracts in which it makes representations warranties guarantees

able resolution of one or more pending matters could have mate- and indemnities that relate to the performance of the Companys

rial adverse impact on the Companys results of operations for one or services and products The Company does not expect any
material

more reporting periods losses related to such representations warranties guarantees and

In the normal course of business the Company also enters into indemnities

21 Income Taxes

For the
years

ended September 30 2009 2008 and 2007 the Companys provision for income taxes totaled $144595 $128302 and

$50362 respectively and consisted of the following

2009 2008 2007

Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total

U.S Federal 87274 $33857 $121131 89592 $18791 $108383 $55088 5961 $49127

State and local 11002 4525 15527 15725 2317 13408 10976 6474 4502

Foreign 16501 8564 7937 14905 8394 6511 2232 5499 3267

$114777 $29818 $144595 $120222 8080 $128302 $68296 $17934 $50362

Tax benefits associated with the vesting of restricted stock and

restricted stock units and the exercise of nonqualified stock options

were credited directly to additional paid-in capital and amounted to

$9253 $14744 and $9535 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The effective income tax rate for the year ended September 30

2009 was 35.3% as compared to 40.5% in fiscal 2008 The current

years effective rate was impacted by number of significant items

including the settlement of certain federal state and foreign tax

audits and the favorable tax treatment associated with the divesti

ture of the Companys Latin America HR BPO business The impact of

these significant items was to decrease the rate by net 4.2%

20 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income consists of the following components

Foreign Currency Unrealized

Translation Gains Losses

____________________________________
Adiustment on Investments

75080

Retirement

Plans

Net Unrealized

Losses on Hedging

Transactions

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive

Income

$75072As of September 30 2006

Other comprehensive income net of tax of

$13531 $0 $0 $0 and $13531 respectively 49827 49835

Adjustment to apply FASB ASC 15-30

recognition provision net of tax of $1202 1525 1525

As of September 30 2007 $124907 1525 $123382

Other comprehensive loss net of tax of $18206
$2647 $9520 $3971 and $34344
respectively 42173 4273 23834 6412 76692

As of September 30 2008 82734 $4273 $25359 6412 46690

Other comprehensive loss net of tax of $15881
$924 $9271 $2620 and $21608
respectively 37448 1438 10732 4189 42553

Adjustment to apply FASB ASC 15-30

measurement date provision 188 188

AsofSeptember3O2009 $45286 $2835 $35903 $2223 4325

During 2009 the Company reclassified $14884 $14884 net of tax to earnings related to the sale of its Latin America HR BPO business Refer to Note for more information

on divestitures

During 2009 the Company reclassified $2349 $1451 net of tax to earnings related to its ARS portfolio Refer to Note for more information on ARS
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Provision benefit for taxes

at U.S federal statutory rate $143402

Increase decrease in

income taxes resulting from

State and local income taxes

net of federal income

tax benefits

Tax impact on foreign

subsidiaries

Decrease increase

in reserves and

related interest

Non-taxable income

non-deductible expenses

India tax holiday

Goodwill impairment at

u.S federal statutory rate

Change in deferred tax assets

related to foreign entities

Other

Deferred tax assets

Deferred contract revenues

Accrued expenses

Foreign tax loss carryforwards

Foreign accrued expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Compensation and benefits

Domestic tax loss carryforwards

Other

Valuation allowance

2009 2008

89396

23410

46993

3166

5764

68925

13359

6826

257839

________
49942

$207897

8133 14248

Income tax expense for the period differed from the amounts com- The domestic federal net operating lass carryforward of $14435

puted by applying the U.S federal income tax rate of 35% to income relates to the RealLife HR acquisition and expires from fiscal

loss before taxes as result of the following 20242027 All of the domestic net operating losses are expected

to be utilized through fiscal 2027

______
2009 2008 2007

At September 30 2009 the Company has available foreign net

operating losses of $176911 of which $166963 has already pro-

$110755 $43651 vided U.S tax benefit The remaining net operating loss carryfor

ward of $9948 includes $4644 which expires at various dates

between fiscal years 2009 and 2022 and the remainder has an

indefinite carryforward period The foreign local country net operat

ing loss carryforwards of $176911 have valuation allowance of

13491 8718 2138 $170096 offsetting the benefit The valuation allowance primarily

represents loss carryforwards and deductible temporary differences

2757 for which utilization is uncertain given the lack of sustained prof

itability of foreign entities and/ar limited carryfarward periods

The Company has tax holiday in India through March 31 2011

11117 6201 9237 The tax benefit of the tax holiday related to the current fiscal year

income is approximately $4600 or $0.05 per diluted share

4932 1768 3672 U.S income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earn-

4600 7700 5600 ings of international subsidiaries that are not flow-through entities

Those earnings are considered to be indefinitely reinvested Upon

122 88717 distribution of those earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise

the Company may be subject to both U.S income taxes subject to

5566 5499 adjustment for foreign tax credits and withholding taxes payable

218 1409 to the various foreign countries Such amount is not practical to

$144595 $128302 50362 estimate

Effective October 2007 the Company adopted FIN 48 codified

primarily in FASB ASC 740 Income Taxes which prescribes more-

likely-than-not threshold for financial statement recognition and

measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax

return This accounting principle also provides guidance on derecag

nition of income tax assets and liabilities classification of current

and deferred income tax assets and liabilities accounting for inter

est and penalties associated with tax positions accounting for

income taxes in interim periods and income tax disclosures Income

tax-related interest expense and income tax-related penalties have

continued to be reported as camponent of the provision for income

taxes in the consolidated statement of operations The Company

included interest and penalties of $890 and $1530 for the years

ended September 30 2009 and 2008 respectively in the provision

for income taxes in the consolidated statement of operations As of

September 30 2009 and 2008 the total amount of accrued income

tax-related interest and penalties included in the consolidated

balance sheets was $12967 and $13857 respectively

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant

portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are

presented below

$70947

26625

53801

4867

73976

10623

7240

248079

56709

$191370

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred contract costs $104455 $1 17262

Depreciation and amortization 18433

Goodwill and intangible amortization 108690 110793

Currency translation adjustment 9696 22796

$241274 $250851
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The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 was

recorded as decrease of $7036 to retained earnings decrease of

$3963 to the income tax payable decrease of $5047 to deferred

tax assets and an increase to the FIN 48 liability account of $5952

as of October 12007

In conjunction with the adoption of FIN 48 the Company classi

fied uncertain tax positions as non-current income tax liabilities

unless expected to be paid in one year

The Company is subject to examination in the U.S federal tax

jurisdiction for the tax years ending September 30 2007 and Sep
tember 30 2008 The U.S federal tax examination for the tax years

ending September 30 2004 through September 30 2006 has been

completed but the statutes of limitations for tax years 2003 2004

2006 2007 and 2008 have not yet expired The Company is also

subject to examination in number of state and foreign jurisdictions

for the 2003 through 2008 tax years for which no individually mate

rial unrecognized tax benefits exist The Company has also filed an

appeal with the IRS for the tax years ended September 30 2003 and

September 30 2004 The Company believes appropriate provisions

for all outstanding issues have been made for all jurisdictions and all

open years

22 Supplemental Cash Flow Information

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecog

nized tax benefits is as follows

________ 2009 2008

Unrecognized tax benefits

beginning of period $63581 $63299
Gross decreases

tax positions in prior periods 6424 3590
Gross increases

current period tax positions 1033 5424

Lapse of statute of limitations 8777 1552

Unrecognized tax benefitsend of period $49413 $63581

As of September 30 2009 and 2008 the total amount of unrecog
nized tax benefits was $49413 and $63581 respectively If tax

matters for the 2003 to 2006 tax years are effectively settled with

the IRS within the next 12 months that settlement could increase

earnings by zero to $45682 based on current estimates Audit out

comes and the timing of audit settlements are subject to significant

uncertainty

Year Ended September 30

23 Segments and Geographic Data

The Company has determined that it has three reportable seg
mentsBenefits Outsourcing HR BPO and Consulting

The Company operates many of the administrative and support

functions of its business through the use of centralized shared serv

ice operations to provide an economical and effective means of

supporting the operating segments These shared services include

information technology services human resources management

corporate relations finance general counsel real estate manage-

ment supplier management and other supporting services Many

of these costs such as information technology services human

resources real estate management and other support services are

assigned to the business segments based on usage and consump
tion factors Certain unallocated costs within finance general coun

sel management client and market leadership and corporate

relations are not allocated to the business segments and remain in

unallocated shared service costs

__________
2009 2008 2007

Supplementary disclosure of cash paid during the year

Interestpaid $41708 20730 $23534
Income taxes paid 127592 136347 73837

Schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities

Acquisitions cash paid net of cash acquired

Transaction costs 625

Fair value of assets acquired 17883 79409 14398
Fair value of liabilities assumed 13155 28482 2704
Goodwill 57036 83779 33868

Cash paid net of cash acquired 61764 134081 45562
Capital leases

__________
5994 13278
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The table below summarizes the Companys reportable segment results

Benefits Outsourcing

Segment net revenues

Segment income

Net client receivables and unbilled work in process

Goodwill and intangible assets

Short-term deferred contract costs net

Deferred contract costs net less current portion

479724

5223
59833

68126

46006

106698

$1011781

143769

256014

405733

483

1439

Yeir Ended September 30

2008 2007

554854

83277
108470

79412

49430

149696

$1094323

143217

303250

357480

496

1288

539452

492193

$943866

143992

Total Company

Segment net revenues

Intersegment revenues

Net revenues

Reimbursements

527272

604224

89919

254905

1448320

$2924640

655543

570963

83444

287060

1395792

$2992802

2009

$1549991

387168

211425

130365

43430

146768

$1550110 $1475326

365336 303984

243823

134071

33518

136076

HRBPO

Segment net revenues

Segment loss

Net client receivables and unbilled work in process

Goodwill and intangible assets

Short-term deferred contract costs net

Deferred contract costs net less current portion

Consulting

Segment net revenues

Segment income

Net client receivables and unbilled work in process

Goodwill and intangible assets

Short-term deferred contract costs net

Deferred contract costs net less current portion

$3041496

37730

3003766

69794

$3199287

47898

3151389

76239

$2960644

39568

2921076

69250

Total revenues

Segment income loss 525714 423276 44217

Charges not recorded at the segment level

Unallocated shared costs 91565 112432 98750

Operating income loss 434149 312844 142967

$3073560 $3227648 $2990326

Net client receivables and unbilled work in process

Goodwill and other intangible assets net

Short-term deferred contract costs net

Deferred contract costs less current portion

Assets not reported by segment

Total assets
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Revenues and long-lived assets by geographic area for the following Year Ended_September30

fiscal
years are provided below Revenues are attributed to geo- 2009 2008 2007

graphic areas based on the country where the associates perform Revenues
the services Long-lived assets include net property and equipment United States $2383195 $2398335 $2269966
long-term deferred contract costs goodwill and intangible assets United Kingdom 321338 389070 370980
long-term investments and all other nan-current assets except for

All Other Countries 369027 440243 349380
investments in affiliated companies

Total $3073560 $3227648 $2990326

Long-Lived Assets

United States 850819 930247

United Kingdom 343269 351635

All Other Countries 132294 130924

Total $1326382 $1412806

24 Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited
The following tables set forth the historical urtaudited quarterly financial data for the periods indicated The information for each of these

periods has been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements and in the Companys opinion reflects all

adjustments necessary to present fairly the Companys financial results Operating results for previous periods do not necessarily indicate

results that may be achieved in any future period Amounts are in thousands except earnings per share information

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Fiscal 2009

Revenues

Net revenues $770763 $746252 $729009 $757742

Reimbursements 23209 15580 14710 16295

Total revenues $793972 $761832 $743719 $774037

Operating income $112357 $106906 $109057 $105829

Netincome $64766 $67539 $68397 $64424

Earnings per share

Basic 0.69 0.72 0.73 0.70

Diluted 0.68 0.71 0.71 0.68

Fiscal 2008

Revenues

Net revenues $793843 $773099 $777758 $806689

Reimbursements 25149 16449 16821 17840

Total revenues $818992 $789548 $794579 $824529

Operating incom $108933 $68460 81181 54270

Net income 63947 44493 $48150 31552

Earnings per share

Basic 0.61 0.45 0.50 0.33

Diluted 0.59 0.43 0.48 $032

Fourth quarter fiscal 2008 results include pretax charge of $34429 related to the review of the Companys leased real estate portfolio
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25 Regulated Subsidiary

Hewitt Financial Services LLC HFS wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Company is registered U.S broker-dealer HFS is subject to the

Securities and Exchange Commissions minimum net capital rule

Rule 15c3-1 which requires that HFS maintain net capital as

defined equal to the greater of $50000 or 62/3 percent of aggregate

indebtedness as defined As of September 30 2009 and 2008

HFS was in compliance with its net capital requirements

26 Related Party Transactions

During fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company paid to Hexaware

Technologies Limited Hexaware approximately $8775

$12672 and $14382 respectively for certain computer program

ming services Liberata Limited Liberata paid approximately

$1123 $1430 and $961 to the Company for consulting services

during fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Gavilon Holdings

LLC Gavilon paid approximately $914 $323 and zero to the

Company for consulting services during fiscal 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

General Atlantic LLC General Atlantic beneficial owner of

more than 5% of the Companys stock in fiscal 2009 and 2008 ben

eficially owned approximately 14.7% of Hexaware approximately

98% of Liberata and approximately 21% of Gavilon at September

30 2009 The Company believes fees for such services were at pre

vailing market rates The agreement pursuant to which services

were provided to Hexaware was renewed forfiscal 2009 after com

petitive bidding process The Company continued providing consult

ing services to Liberata and Gavilon on similar terms in fiscal 2009

Mr Denning former Company director who retired from the Board

of Directors in February 2009 and the Chairman and Managinq

Director of General Atlantic did not participate in any
decision relat

ing to these services none of which are material to the Company or

General Atlantic

The Company owns 33.3% interest in retirement and financial

management consulting joint venture in Mauritius in which Yvan

Legris the President of the Companys Consulting segment owns

33.3% interest and is also director The joint venture was origi

nally formed in 1997 by Mr Legris Bacon Woodrow and an unaf

filiated third party who is the managing director and owner of the

remaining 33.3% interest in the joint venture The Company

acquired its interest in 2002 with the acquisition of the benefits con

sulting business of Bacon Woodrow The Company has instituted

policies to insulate Mr Legris from the day to day management of

the joint venture Revenues for the joint venture in fiscal 2009 were

$939 after tax profits were $166 and no dividends were paid by the

joint venture to its members

27 Subsequent Event

On October 2009 subsequent to the year ended September 30

2009 the Company entered into three-year $250000 credit facil

ity with multi-bank syndicate This credit facility contains

$25000 sub-limit for the issuance of letters of credit This credit

facility replaces the previous $200000 five-year credit facility

dated May 23 2005 Borrowings under this facility accrue interest

at LIBOR plus 200300 basis points or base rate plus 100200

basis points Borrowings are repayable at expiration of the facility

on October 2012 and quarterly commitment fees ranging from

3050 basis points are charged under the credit facility The out

standing letters of credit of $10366 under the current credit facility

were transferred to this new credit facility in fiscal 2010
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Underlying Net Revenues Operating Income Net Income Hewitt Associates Inc

And Earnings Per Share Unaudited

In assessing operating performance the Company also reviews its

results once unusual adjustments have been removed The Company

believes that doing so provides better understanding of underlying

operating performance For the year ended September 30 2009 and

September 30 2008 underlying net revenues operating income

net income and earnings per
share were

Year Ended September 30

2009 2008In thousands except for shore and per share amounts

Revenues before reimbursements net revenues as reported $3003766 $3151389
Adjustments

HR BPO divestitures 31536
HR BPO contract restructurings 23086

Total adjustments 54622
Underlying revenues before reimbursements net revenues 3003766 3096767

Operating income as reported 434149 312844

Adjustments

HR BPO divestitures1 9379 40518
Real estate rationalization2 44775
HR BPO contract restructurings 11798

Total adjustments 9379 16055

Underlying operating income 424770 328899
of underlying net revenues 14.1% 10.6%

Total other income expense net 24429 3600
HR BPO divestituresw 1131
Add A/R interest write-off 273

Underlying other income net 24429 2742

Underlying pretax income 400341 331641
Provision for income toxes 145695 129340

Underlying net income 254646 202301

Underlying earnings per share

Basic $2.73 $2.05

Diluted $2.67 $1.98

Shores outstanding

Basic 93400271 98791739
Diluted 95390026 101970321

1HR BPO divested assets include cybarg lanuary 2008 Latin America February 2009 and relocation services March 2009 cybarg prior period results and Latin America

and relocation services comparative post-disposition amounts have been excluded from underlying and as adjusted amounts for year-over-year comparative purposes

Adjustments to net revenues for the year ended September 30 2008 include third-party supplier revenues of $366 related to HR BPO divested assets Adjustments to operating

income for the year ended September 30 2008 reflect $221 reduction to the $35667 gain on sale of business reported in the Q2 FY08 consolidated Statement of Opera

tions This reduction pertains to certain Cyborg employee-related expenses recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2008 Adjustments to other income expense net primarily

relate to the exclusion of interest income and gain on assets net of interest expense far divested HR BPO Latin America and relocation services operations

2Charges related to the companys real estate rationalization initiative were excluded from operating income in deriving underlying operating income net income EPS and

Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended September 30 2008 charges related to ongoing real estate optimization initiatives and updated real estate sublease rental assumptions

of $14855 are included in the reported and underlying results for the yeor ended September 30 2009

Related to HR BPO contract restructurings ond divestitures

The Company used an effective tax rate of 39.0% for the year ended September 30 2008 for its underlying net income calculation The Company used an underlying effective

tax rate of 36.4% for the year ended September 30 2009 to adjust for tax benefits associated with its HR BPO Latin America divestiture The Company believes this approxi

mates the normalized effective tax rate for the period

Free Cash Flow Reconciliation1 Unaudited
Yeor Ended September 30

In thousands 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Net cash provided by operating activities 432998 327902 $435230 381018 338252
Additions to property and equipment 127907 117556 88477 129936 177280

Free cash flow $305091 210346 $346753 251082 160972

Free cash flow non-GAAP measure is cash flow from operations less
capital expenditures and capitalized software costs The Company believes this measure provides useful

information related to the Companys liquidity including but not limited to its ability to reduce debt make strategic investments and repurchase stack The Company views free

cash flaw as supplement to and not substitute for GAAP measures of
liquidity

included in its consolidated statements of cash flaws
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Underlying Business Segment Results

In assessing aperating performance the Company also reviews its operating performance For the year ended September 30 2009 and

results once unusual adjustments have been removed The Company September 30 2008 underlying segment net revenues segment

believes that doing so provides better understanding of underlying income loss and unallocated shored service costs were

Business Segments
Year Ended September 30

In thousands
2009 2008

Benefits Outsourcing

Segment net revenues as reported $1549991 $1550110

Adjustment HR BPO contract restructurings 8973

Underlying segment net revenues 15149991 1541137

Segment income as reported 387168 365336

Adjustments

Real estate rationalization 17892

HR BPO contract restructurings 4312
HR BPO divestitures

______
253

Total adjustments 13833

Underlying segment income 387168 379169

of underlying segment net revenues 25.0% 24.6%

HRBPO

Segment net revenues as reported 379724 554854

Adjustments

HR BPO divestiturest1 31536
HR BPO contract restructurings

14113

Total adjustments 45649

Underlying segment net revenues 479724 509205

Segment loss as reported 5223 83277
Adjustments

HR BPO divestitures 9379 40797
HR BPO contract restructurings

16109

Real estate rationalization 13094

Total adjustments 9379 11594

Underlying segment loss 14602 94871
of underlying segment net revenues 3.0% 18.6%

Consulting

Segment net revenues as reported and underlying $1011781 $1094323

Segment income as reported
143769 143217

Adjustments

Real estate rationalization 4240

HR BPO divestiturest 38

Total adjustments
4278

Underlying segment income 143769 147495

of underlying segment net revenues 14.2% 13.5%

Unallocated shared service costs

Unallocated shared service costs as reported 91565 112432

Adjustments

Real estate rationalization 9549

HR BPO divestituresW 12

Total adjustments
9537

Underlying unallocated shared service costs 91565 102895

of underlying consolidated net revenues 3.0% 3.3%

HR BRO divested assets include Cyborg lanuary 2008 Latin America February 2009 and relocation services 1arch 2009 Cyborg prior period results and Latin America

and relocation services comparative post-disposition amounts have been excluded from underlying and as adiusted amounts for year-over-year comparative purposes

Adjustments to HR BPO segment net revenues for the year ended September 30 2008 include third-party supplier revenues of $366 related to HR BPO divested assets

Adjustments to HR BPO segment loss for the year ended September 30 2008 reflect $221 reduction to the $35667 gain on sale of business reported in the Q2 FY08

Consolidated Statement of Operations This reduction pertains to certain Cyborg employee-related expenses recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2008
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Performance measurement

The graph below depicts total cumulative stockholder return on

$100 invested on September 30 2004 in Hewitt Associates Inc

Class common stock the Standard Poors 500 Index and

an industry peer group index composed of the common stock of

publicly held competitors of the Company The graph assumes

reinvestment of dividends

Peer Group3

The Company compiles its own peer group as it does not believe

an appropriate independently compiled industry peer group

index exists The index developed by the Company represents its

judgment of its closest competitors for which there is public stock

price Several of the Companys closest competitors are not publicly

held thus these competitors are not included in the index

cumulative Total Return

9/20O4 9/2005 9/20061 9/2O07 9/20081 9/20091

HewittAssociates Inc 100.00 103.10 91.69 132.46 137.72 137.68

SP 500 100.00 112.23 124.31 144.70 113.01 105.15

PeerGroup3 100.00 90.15 99.74 108.39 110.90 103.31

Return as of last business doy of the month

Copyright 2002 Standard Poors division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc All rights reserved

Composed of Accenture Ltd Affiliated Computer Services Automatic Data Processing Inc Convergys Corporation

Marsh McLennan Companies Inc. and Watson Wyatt Company Holdings

$150.00

$100.00

$50.00

$0.00
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Hewitt Associates Inc

sP500

9/2007 9/2008 9/2009
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Board of Directors and senior management

As of December 2009

Board of Directors Senior Management

Russell Fradin Russell Fradint

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hewitt Assaciates Inc
David Baruch

William Conaty
Chief Information Officer

Former Senior Vice PresidentCorporate
Vincent Coppolat

Human Resources
Senior Vice PresidentGlobal Business

General Electric Company
Services and New Products New Markets

ud son reen
Eric Fiedlert

Vice Chairman
PresidentConsulting

NAVTEQ Corporation

Juhe Gordont

Cheryl Francisl3
Chief Client Officer

Business Consultant and Ca-Chairman

Corporate Leadership Center Tracy Keoght

Senior Vice PresidentHumsn Resources

Michael Greenleest

Chief Executive Officer James Koniecznya

Ebiquity plc
PresidentHR Business Process

Outsourcing
AlexJ Mandla

Non-Executive Chairman Steven IKyanat

Gemalto NV Senior Vice PresidentGeneral Counsel

and Secretary

Cary McMillan

Chief Executive Officer Yvan Legrist

True Partners Consulting LLC PresidentConsulting

Thomas Neff23 Matthew Levint

Chairman Senior Vice PresidentCorporate

Spencer Stuart U.S Development and Strategy

Steven Stanbrook Mary Moreland

President Developing Markets North America Retirement and

S.C Johnson San Inc Investment Consulting Leocrer

Board Committees John Porkt

Audit Chief Financial Officer

Compeneniron and Leadership

Nrrminoting and Corporate Governance
Jay Risingt

Denoies Comrniitee Chair man
PresidentGlobal Benefits Outsourcing

Kristi Savacaolt

Senior Vice PresidentLarge Market

Benefits Outsourcing

Richele SoJa

Global Client Development and Marketing

LeaderConsulting

Executive Officer as defined by 5ecjrrties and Exchange

Commission regulations
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Corporate information

Corporate Headquarters Annual Meeting of Stockholders NYSE and SEC Certifications

Mailing Address January 27 20109 a.m Hewitt Associates Chief Executive Officer

100 Half Day Rood Hewitt Associates and Chief Financial Officer respectively hove

Lincoinshire IL 60069 Overlook Point filed with the U.S Securities and Exchonge

847 295-5000 Lincolnshire IL 60069 Commission those certificotions required to

be filed by the Companys principal executive

Internet Web Site Address Investor Relations
and financial officers regarding the quality

www.hewitt.cam Securities analysts investment prafessianals
of the financial disciasures in Hewitts report

and stockholders should directtheir

StockListing on Farm lO-Kiarthe fiscal yearended
inquiries to

New York Stack Exchange September 302009 In 2009 Hewitts Chief

Investor Relations

Trading symbol HEW Executive Officer also made an unqualified

847 295-5000
certification ta the New York Stack Exchange

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Community Relations NYSE with respect to the Companys campli

Computershare Trust Company N.A
For information regarding Hewitt Associates ance with the NYSE corporate gavernance

RO Box 43069
community relations programs and the listing

standards

Providence RI 02940-3069
Hewitt Associates Foundation please direct

877 282-1168
inquiries to

www.computershare.com
Community Relations

Hewitt Associates HewittShares Program 847 883-1000

Morgan Stanley Smith Barney
Public Relations

70 West Madison Street
News media and trade publications shauld

Suite 5100
direct their inquiries to

Chicago IL 60602
Public Relations

800 523-2085
847 883-1000

www.benefitaccess.com
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